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INTRODUCTION 
 
As used herein, except as the context otherwise requires, the term “we” refers to Ripple Lake Diamonds Inc., a 
corporation organized under the laws of the Province of British Columbia, Canada. 
 
We publish our financial statements expressed in Canadian Dollars and prepare a compilation statement to 
comply with U.S. GAAP. In this document, references to "US dollars" or "US$" are to the currency of the 
United States of America. Otherwise our Financial Statements and disclosure are in Canadian Dollars. 
 
Our fiscal year ends on June 30 of each year. References in this document to a particular year are to the fiscal 
year unless otherwise indicated. 
 

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 
 
This Annual Report on Form 20-F contains forward-looking statements and information, within the meaning of 
Section 21E of the Exchange Act, relating to Ripple Lake Diamonds Inc. (that are based on the beliefs and 
estimates of management as well as assumptions made by and information currently available to us. When used 
in this document, any statements that express or involve discussions with respect to predictions, beliefs, plans, 
projections, objectives, assumptions or future events of performance (often but not always using words or 
phrases such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “strategy”, “goals”, “objectives”, 
“project”, “potential” or variations thereof or stating that certain actions, events, or results “may”, “could”, 
“would”, “might” or “will” be taken, occur, or be achieved, or the negative or any of these terms and similar 
expressions, as they relate to our company or management, are intended to identify forward-looking statements. 
 
Such statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and are subject to certain known and 
unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions.  Many factors could cause actual results, performance or 
achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements that may be 
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements, including, among others: 
 

• risks relating to our ability to finance the exploration and development of our mineral properties; 
 

• permitting risks relating to the exploration and development of our mineral properties and business 
activities; 

 
• risks and uncertainties relating to the interpretation of exploration results, geology, grade and continuity 

of our mineral deposits; 
 

• commodity price fluctuations (particularly gold and silver commodities); 
 

• currency fluctuations; 
 

• risks related to governmental regulations, including environmental regulations; 
 

• risks related to possible reclamation activities on our properties; 
 

• our ability to attract and retain qualified management and our dependence upon such management in the 
development of our mineral properties; 

 
• increased competition in the exploration industry; 

 
• our lack of infrastructure; 

 
• our history of losses and expectation of future losses. 



-5-

Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove 
incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those described herein.  This list is not exhaustive of the 
factors that may affect any of our forward-looking statements.  Forward-looking statements are statements about 
the future and are inherently uncertain, and our actual achievements or other future events or conditions may 
differ materially from those reflected in the forward-looking statements due to a variety of risks, uncertainties 
and other factors, including without limitation, those referred to in this document, under the heading “Risk 
Factors” and elsewhere.  Our forward-looking statements are based on the beliefs, expectations and opinions of 
management on the date the statements are made, and we do not assume any obligation to update forward-
looking statements if circumstances or management’s beliefs, expectations or opinions should change. 
 
For the reasons set forth above, investors should not attribute undue certainty to or place undue reliance 
on forward-looking statements. 
 

PART I 
 
ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISORS 
 
Not applicable.  Refer to “Item 6 - Directors, Senior Management and Employees - Directors  and  Senior  
Management" herein.  
 
ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE 
 
Not applicable. 
 
ITEM 3. KEY INFORMATION 
 
Selected Financial Data 
 
The summary  financial information set forth below should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its 
entirety by reference to, our  financial statements as of and for the years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005, 
together with the notes thereto, which appear elsewhere in this annual report.  Our financial statements as of and 
for the years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005 have been audited by Amisano Hanson, Chartered 
Accountants.  
 
Our financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars and have been prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in Canada.  Our financial statements presented in this registration statement have 
been reconciled to generally accepted accounting principals in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP").  
 
The selected financial data set forth in the following tables is expressed in Canadian dollars (“Cdn$”).   
 
 Fiscal years ended 
 June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005 
Revenues (Interest Income) $    1,990 $    2,256 
Net Loss 467,636 921,040 
Deficit, beginning of period 939,341 18,301 
Deficit, end of period 1,406,977 939,341 
Loss per share 0.02 0.05 

1. Diluted loss per share has not been presented as the effect on basic loss per share would be anti-dilutive. 

2. Under United States GAAP, all mineral exploration and development expenditures are expensed in the year incurred in an exploration 
stage company until there is substantial evidence that a commercial body of ore has been located.  The amounts in the table are 
expressed under Canadian GAAP, which allows resource exploration and development property expenditures to be deferred during 
this process. 
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The weighted average outstanding shares used to calculate income (loss) per share for the following fiscal 
periods are: 26,783,013 for the year ended June 30, 2006, and 18,539,297 for the year ended June 30, 2005. 
 
To date, we have not generated any cash flow from our activities to fund ongoing activities and cash 
commitments.  We have financed our operations principally through the sale of our equity securities.  We 
believe we have sufficient financial resources to fund our ongoing overhead expenses for the next six months.  In 
the future, we may need to raise additional capital through the sale of our equity securities to fund further 
exploration activities.  See "Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects - Liquidity and Capital 
Resources."  We may not be able to raise the necessary funds, if any, and may not be able to raise such funds at 
terms which are acceptable to us.  In the event we are unable to raise adequate finances to fund the proposed 
activities, we will need to reassess our alternatives and may have to abandon one or more of our property 
interests as a result. 
 
Balance Sheet Information for the year ended June 30, 2006 
 
 Fiscal years ended 
 June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005 
Current Assets $    387,622 $    388,407 
Mineral Exploration Properties  4,881,420 3,185,400 
Total Assets 5,269,042 3,575,080 
Current/Total Liabilities 47,962 482,778 
Net Working Capital 339,660 (94,371) 
Shareholders Equity 5,221,080 3,092,302 
 
The above financial information is presented in accordance with Canadian GAAP, which are different in some 
respects from US GAAP.  The effect of these differences on our financial performance is summarized in the 
following table. 
 
Reconciliation of total assets, liabilities, and shareholder equity to U.S. GAAP:  
 

 2006 2005 
 $ $ 
   
Total assets under Canadian GAAP 5,269,042 3,575,080 
Adjustments   
Expenses of advances for future exploration costs - - 
Expense of mineral exploration properties costs (4,401,820) (2,840,900) 
   
Total assets under US GAAP 867,222 734,180 
   
Total liabilities under Canadian GAAP 47,962 482,778 
Adjustments - - 
   
Total liabilities under US GAAP 47,962 482,778 
   
Total stockholders’ equity under Canadian GAAP 5,221,080 3,092,302 
Adjustments   
Expenses of advances for future exploration costs - - 
Expenses of mineral exploration properties costs (4,401,820) (2,840,900) 
   
Total equity under US GAAP 819,260 251,402 
   
Total liabilities and equity under US GAAP 867,222 734,180 
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Exchange Rates 
 
We maintain our books of account in Canadian dollars.  Our audited financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Canada.  All references to the dollar herein are to the 
lawful currency of Canada unless designated as “US$”. 
 
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain exchange rates based on the noon buying rate 
with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York for cable transfers in Canadian dollars.  Such rates are the number 
of United States dollars per one (1) Canadian dollar.  On December 21, 2006, the exchange rate was US$1.00 
per Cdn$1.1538.  The high and low exchange rates for each month during the previous six months were as 
follows: 

 
 High Low 

November 2006 1.1474 1.1275 

October 2006 1.1384 1.1154 

September 2006 1.1272 1.1052 

August 2006 1.1312 1.1066 

July 2006 1.1415 1.1112 

June 2006 1.1241 1.0991 
 
The average exchange rate is based on the average of the exchange rates on the last day of each month during 
such periods. 
 

 Year Ended June 30 
 2006 2005 

Rate at end of Period 
Average Rate during Period 
Low 
High 

1.1150 
1.1627 
1.0989 
1.2437 

1.2256 
1.2497 
1.1775 
1.3353 

 
Capitalization and Indebtedness 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Reason for the Offer and Use of Proceeds 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Risk Factors 
 
An investment in our securities involves significant risks, including the following: 
 

Risks Associated with Exploration 
 
We have no known reserves on our properties. 
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We have no mineral producing properties and have never generated any revenue from our operations.  The 
majority of exploration projects do not result in the discovery of commercially mineable deposits of ore.  Only 
those mineral deposits that we can economically and legally extract or produce, based on a comprehensive 
evaluation of cost, grade, recovery and other factors, are considered “resources” or “reserves.”  We have no 
known bodies of commercial ore or economic deposits and have not defined or delineated any proven or 
probable reserves or resources on any of our properties.  We may never discover any gold, silver or other 
minerals from mineralized material in commercially exploitable quantities and any identified mineralized 
deposit may never qualify as a commercially mineable (or viable) reserve.  In addition, we are in the early stages 
of exploration and substantial additional work will be required in order to determine if any economic deposits 
exist on our properties.  Substantial expenditures are required to establish ore reserves through drilling and 
metallurgical and other testing techniques.  No assurance can be given that any level of recovery of the ore 
reserves will be realized or that any identified mineral deposit will ever qualify as a commercial mineable ore 
body which can be legally and economically exploited.  Even in the event commercial quantities of minerals are 
discovered, the mining properties might not be brought into a state of commercial production.  Estimates of 
mineral resources are inherently imprecise and depend to some extent on statistical inferences drawn from 
limited drilling, which may prove unreliable.  Fluctuations in the market prices of minerals may render reserves 
and deposits containing relatively lower grades of mineralization uneconomic.  Material changes in mineralized 
material, grades or recovery rates may affect the economic viability of projects.  Finding mineral deposits is 
dependent on a number of factors, not the least of which are the technical skills of exploration personnel 
involved.  The commercial viability of a mineral deposit once discovered is also dependent on a number of 
factors, some of which are particular attributes of the deposit, such as size, grade and proximity to infrastructure 
and resource markets, as well as factors independent of the attributes of the deposit, such as government 
regulations and metal prices.  Most of these factors are beyond the control of the entity conducting such mineral 
exploration.  Moreover, short-term operating factors relating to mineral resources, such as the need for orderly 
development of the deposits or the processing of new or different grades, may cause mining operations, if any, 
to be unprofitable in any particular period.  These risks may limit or prevent us from making a profit from the 
exploration and development of our mineral properties and could negatively affect the value of our equity. 
 
We face risks related to exploration and development, if warranted, of our properties. 
 
Our level of profitability, if any, in future years will depend to a great degree on gold and silver prices and 
whether any of our exploration stage properties can be brought into production.  The exploration for and 
development of mineral deposits involves significant risks.  It is impossible to ensure that the current and future 
exploration programs and/or feasibility studies on our existing mineral properties will establish reserves. 
Whether an ore body will be commercially viable depends on a number of factors, including, but not limited to: 
the particular attributes of the deposit, such as size, grade and proximity to infrastructure; metal prices, which 
cannot be predicted and which have been highly volatile in the past; mining, processing and transportation costs; 
perceived levels of political risk and the willingness of lenders and investors to provide project financing; labour 
costs and possible labour strikes; and governmental regulations, including, without limitation, regulations 
relating to prices, taxes, royalties, land tenure, land use, importing and exporting materials, foreign exchange, 
environmental protection, employment, worker safety, transportation, and reclamation and closure obligations. 
 
We are subject to the risks normally encountered in the mining industry, such as: 
 

• unusual or unexpected geological formations; 
• fires, floods, earthquakes, volcanic eruptions, and other natural disasters; 
• power outages and water shortages; 
• cave-ins, land slides, and other similar mining hazards; 
• labour disruptions and labour disputes; 
• inability to obtain suitable or adequate machinery, equipment, or labour; 
• liability for pollution or other hazards; and 
• other known and unknown risks involved in the operation of mines and the conduct of exploration. 
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The development of mineral properties is affected by many factors, including, but not limited to: the cost of 
operations, variations in the grade of ore, fluctuations in metal markets, costs of extraction and processing equipment, 
availability of equipment and labour, labour costs and possible labour strikes, and government regulations, including 
without limitation, regulations relating to taxes, royalties, allowable production, importing and exporting of minerals, 
foreign exchange, employment, worker safety, transportation, and environmental protection.  Depending on the price 
of minerals, we may determine that it is impractical to commence, or, if commenced, continue, commercial 
production.  Such a decision would negatively affect our profits and may affect the value of our equity. 
 
We may not have access to all of the supplies and materials for our exploration activities which could cause us to 
delay or suspend operations.  
 
Competition and unforeseen limited sources of supplies in the industry could result in occasional spot shortages of 
supplies, such as dynamite, and certain equipment such as bulldozers and excavators that we might need to conduct 
exploration.  We have not attempted to locate or negotiate with any suppliers of products, equipment or materials. 
Our exploration efforts will be continued on the receipt of further funding.  Once further funding is obtained we will 
attempt to locate products, equipment and materials.  If we cannot find the products and equipment we need we will 
have to suspend our exploration plans until we do find the products and equipment we need. 
 
Our properties may be subject to unregistered agreements, transfers or claims and title may be adversely affected 
by undetected defects. 
 
We have not conducted a legal survey of the boundaries of any of our properties, and therefore, in accordance with 
the laws of the jurisdictions in which these properties are situated, their existence and area could be in doubt.  We 
have not obtained formal title reports on any of our properties and title may be in doubt.  Our properties may be 
subject to unregistered agreements, transfers or claims and title may be adversely affected by such undetected defects.  
If title is disputed, we may have to defend our ownership through the courts, and we cannot guarantee that a favorable 
judgment will be obtained.  Any litigation could be extremely costly to us and could limit the available capital for use 
in other exploration and development activities.  We may require additional financing to cover the costs of any 
litigation necessary to establish title.  In the event of an adverse judgment, we could lose our property rights and may 
be required to cease our exploration and development activities on our properties. 
 
Mineral operations are subject to government regulations. 
 
Our primary exploration properties are located in Ontario and Nunavut.  The federal government of Canada and the 
Provinces of Ontario and Nunavut regulate mining operations and require mining permits and licenses.  There can be 
no guarantee that we will be able to obtain all necessary permits and approvals from various federal, provincial, and 
local government authorities that may be required in order to undertake exploration activities or commence 
construction or operation of mine facilities on our properties.  Further, there is no guarantee that the federal, 
provincial, and local governments will not change the terms and conditions of these permits and licenses, adversely 
affecting us, or that such governments will completely revoke these licenses, terminating our property rights and 
requiring us to cease exploration and development activities on our properties.  If we are unable to obtain and 
maintain any necessary permits, we may be forced to abandon all or a portion of our properties. 
 
Mining operations are subject to a wide range of government regulations including, but not limited to: restrictions on 
production and production methods, price controls, tax increases, expropriation of property, import and export 
control, employment laws, worker safety regulations, environmental protection, protection of agricultural territory or 
changes in conditions under which minerals may be marketed.  Mining operations may also be affected by claims of 
native peoples, any of which could have the effect of reducing or preventing us from exploiting any possible mineral 
reserves on our properties. 
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Mineral operations are subject to market forces outside of our control. 
 
The marketability of minerals is affected by numerous factors beyond the control of the entity involved in their 
mining and processing.  These factors include, but are not limited to, market fluctuations, government regulations 
relating to prices, taxes, royalties, allowable production, import restrictions applicable to equipment and supplies, 
export controls and supply and demand.  One or more of these risk elements could have an impact on costs of an 
operation and, if significant enough, reduce the profitability of our operation and threaten our continuation. 
 
The mining industry is highly competitive. 
 
The business of the acquisition, exploration, and development of mineral properties is intensely competitive.  We will 
be required to compete, in the future, directly with other corporations that may have better access to potential mineral 
resources, more developed infrastructure, more available capital, better access to necessary financing, and more 
knowledgeable and available employees than us.  We may encounter competition in acquiring mineral properties, 
hiring mining professionals, obtaining mining resources, such as manpower, drill rigs, and other mining equipment.  
Such corporations could outbid us for potential projects or produce minerals at lower costs.  Increased competition 
could also affect our ability to attract necessary capital funding or acquire suitable producing properties or prospects 
for mineral exploration in the future. 
 
Mining and mineral exploration have substantial operational risks which are uninsured or uninsurable risks. 
 
Exploration, development and mining operations involve various hazards, including environmental hazards, industrial 
accidents, metallurgical and other processing problems, unusual or unexpected rock formations, structural cave-ins or 
slides, flooding, fires, metal losses and periodic interruptions due to inclement or hazardous weather conditions.  
These risks could result in damage to or destruction of mineral properties, facilities or other property, personal injury, 
environmental damage, delays in operations, increased cost of operations, monetary losses and possible legal liability.  
We may not be able to obtain insurance to cover these risks at economically feasible premiums or at all.  We may 
elect not to insure where premium costs are disproportionate to our perception of the relevant risks.  The payment of 
such insurance premiums and of such liabilities would reduce the funds available for exploration and production 
activities. 
 
Environmental Regulatory Requirements 
 
In connection with our operations and properties, we are subject to extensive and changing environmental legislation, 
regulation and actions.  We cannot predict what environmental legislation, regulation or policy will be enacted or 
adopted in the future or how future laws and regulations will be administered or interpreted.  The recent trend in 
environmental legislation and regulation, generally, is toward stricter standards and this trend is likely to continue in 
the future.  This recent trend includes, without limitation, laws and regulations relating to air and water quality, mine 
reclamation, waste handling and disposal, the protection of certain species and the preservation of certain lands.  
These regulations may require the acquisition of permits or other authorizations for certain activities.  These laws and 
regulations may also limit or prohibit activities on certain lands.  Compliance with more stringent laws and 
regulations, as well as potentially more vigorous enforcement policies or stricter interpretation of existing laws, may 
necessitate significant capital outlays, may materially affect our results of operations and business, or may cause 
material changes or delays in our intended activities. 
 
Our operations may require additional analysis in the future including environmental and social impact and other 
related studies.  Certain activities require the submission and approval of environmental impact assessments.  
Environmental assessments of proposed projects carry a heightened degree of responsibility for companies and 
directors, officers, and employees.  There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain or maintain all necessary 
permits that may be required to continue our operation or the exploration of our properties or, if feasible, to 
commence development, construction or operation of mining facilities at such properties on terms which enable 
operations to be conducted at economically justifiable costs. 
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Other Regulatory Requirements 
 
Our activities are subject to extensive regulations governing various matters, including management and use of 
toxic substances and explosives, management of natural resources, exploration, development of mines, 
production and post-closure reclamation, exports, price controls, taxation, regulations concerning business 
dealings with indigenous peoples, labour standards on occupational health and safety, including mine safety, and 
historic and cultural preservation.  Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations may result in civil or 
criminal fines or penalties, enforcement actions thereunder, including orders issued by regulatory or judicial 
authorities causing operations to cease or be curtailed, and may include corrective measures requiring capital 
expenditures,  installation of additional equipment, or remedial actions, any of which could result in our 
incurring significant expenditures.  We may also be required to compensate those suffering loss or damage by 
reason of a breach of such laws, regulations or permitting requirements.  It is also possible that future laws and 
regulations, or more stringent enforcement of current laws and regulations by governmental authorities, could 
cause additional expense, capital expenditures, restrictions on or suspension of our operations and delays in the 
exploration and development of our properties. 
 

Risks Associated with Financing 
 
We have a history of losses and no revenues. 
 
We are a mineral exploration company without operations and have historically incurred losses.  To date, we 
have not recorded any revenues from our operations nor have we commenced commercial production on any of 
our properties.  We do not expect to receive revenues from operations in the foreseeable future, if at all.  We 
expect to continue to incur losses unless and until such time as properties enter into commercial production and 
generate sufficient revenues to fund our continuing operations. 
 
Until such time, we will be dependent upon future financing in order to meet our capital requirements and 
continue our plan of operations.  Although we have raised additional private placement financing during fiscal 
2006, these funds may not be sufficient to undertake all of our planned acquisition, exploration, and 
development programs.  We cannot guarantee that we will obtain necessary financing.  The development of our 
properties will require the commitment of substantial resources to conduct the time consuming exploration and 
development of properties.  The amounts and timing of expenditures will depend on the progress of on-going 
exploration, assessment, and development, the results of consultants’ analyses and recommendations, the rate at 
which operating losses are incurred, the execution of any joint venture agreements with strategic partners, our 
acquisition of additional properties and other factors, many of which are beyond our control.  We may never 
generate any revenues or achieve profitability. 
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We may require additional capital to meet our capital requirements for future fiscal years. 
 
We have raised additional private placement financing during fiscal 2006, but may not have sufficient financial 
resources to undertake all planned acquisition, exploration and development programs.  In the future, our ability 
to continue our exploration, assessment, and development activities depends in part on our ability to commence 
operations and generate revenues or to obtain financing through joint ventures, debt financing, equity financing, 
production sharing arrangements or some combination of these or other means.  There can be no assurance that 
option arrangements will be exercised and the associated funding obtained.  There can be no assurance that we 
will commence operations and generate sufficient revenues to meet our obligations as they become due or will 
obtain necessary financing on acceptable terms, if at all.  Our failure to meet our ongoing obligations on a timely 
basis could result in the loss or substantial dilution of our interests (as existing or as proposed to be acquired) in 
our properties.  In addition, should we incur significant losses in future periods, we may be unable to continue as 
a going concern, and realization of assets and settlement of liabilities in other than the normal course of business 
may be at amounts significantly different from those in the financial statements included in this Annual Report. 
 
The prices of precious and base minerals and metals fluctuate widely and may not produce enough revenue 
to cover our costs. 
 
Even if commercial quantities of mineral deposits are discovered, there is no guarantee that a profitable market 
will exist for the sale of the metals produced.  Our long-term viability and profitability depend, in large part, 
upon the market price of metals which have experienced significant movement over short periods of time, and 
are affected by numerous factors beyond our control, including international economic and political trends, 
expectations of inflation, currency exchange fluctuations, interest rates and global or regional consumption 
patterns, speculative activities and increased production due to improved mining and production methods.  The 
supply of and demand for metals are affected by various factors, including political events, economic conditions 
and production costs in major producing regions.  There can be no assurance that the price of any minerals 
produced from our properties will be such that any such deposits can be mined at a profit. 
 
We are dependent upon key management employees. 
 
The success of our operations will depend upon numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control, 
including (i) our ability to enter into strategic alliances through a combination of one or more joint ventures, 
mergers or acquisition transactions; and (ii) our ability to attract and retain additional key personnel in sales, 
marketing, technical support and finance.  These and other factors will require the use of outside suppliers as 
well as the talents and efforts of our management.  There can be no assurance of success with any or all of these 
factors on which our operations will depend.  We have relied and may continue to rely, upon consultants and 
others for operating expertise. 
 
Our growth will require new personnel, which we will be required to recruit, hire, train and retain. 
 
We expect significant growth in the number of our employees if we determine that a mine at any of our 
properties is commercially feasible, we are able to raise sufficient funding and we elect to develop the property. 
This growth will place substantial demands on us and our management.  Our ability to assimilate new personnel 
will be critical to our performance.  We will be required to recruit additional personnel and to train, motivate 
and manage employees.  We will also have to adopt and implement new systems in all aspects of our operations. 
This will be particularly critical in the event we decide not to use contract miners at any of our properties.  We 
have no assurance that we will be able to recruit the personnel required to execute our programs or to manage 
these changes successfully. 
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We have limited experience with development stage mining operations. 
 
We have limited experience in placing resource properties into production, and our ability to do so will be 
dependent upon using the services of appropriately experienced personnel or entering into agreements with other 
major resource companies that can provide such expertise.  There can be no assurance that we will have 
available, the necessary expertise when and if we place our resource properties into production. 
 
Certain of our directors and officers are also directors and/or officers and/or shareholder with potential 
competitors, giving rise to potential conflicts of interest. 
 
Several of our directors are also directors, officers or shareholders of other companies.  Some of the directors 
and officers are engaged and will continue to be engaged in the search for additional business opportunities on 
behalf of other corporations, and situations may arise where these directors and officers will be in direct 
competition with us.  Such associations may give rise to conflicts of interest from time to time.  Such a conflict 
poses the risk that we may enter into a transaction on terms which could place us in a worse position than if no 
conflict existed.  Conflicts, if any, will be dealt with in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Business 
Corporations Act (British Columbia) (the "BCBCA").  Our directors are required by law to act honestly and in 
good faith with a view to our best interests and to disclose any interest which they many have in any project or 
opportunity for us.  However, each director has a similar obligation to other companies for which such director 
serves as an officer or director.  In order to avoid the possible conflict of interest which may arise between the 
directors' duties to us and their duties to the other companies on whose boards they serve, our directors and 
officers have agreed to the following: 
 
(a) participation in other business ventures offered to the directors will be allocated between the various 

companies and on the basis of prudent business judgment and the relative financial abilities and needs of 
the companies to participate; 

 
(b) no commissions or other extraordinary consideration will be paid to such directors and officers; and 
 
(c) business opportunities formulated by or through other companies in which the directors and officers are 

involved will not be offered to us except on the same or better terms than the basis on which they are 
offered to third party participants. 

 
Risks Associated with an Investment in Our Securities 

 
Stock market price and volume volatility. 
 
The market for our common shares of may be highly volatile for reasons both related to our performance or 
events pertaining to the industry (ie, mineral price fluctuation/high production costs/accidents) as well as factors 
unrelated to us or our industry.  In particular, market demand for products incorporating minerals in their 
manufacture fluctuates from one business cycle to the next, resulting in change of demand for the mineral and 
an attendant change in the price for the mineral.  Our common shares can be expected to be subject to volatility 
in both price and volume arising from market expectations, announcements and press releases regarding our 
business, and changes in estimates and evaluations by securities analysts or other events or factors.  In recent 
years the securities markets in the United States and Canada have experienced a high level of price and volume 
volatility, and the market price of securities of many companies, particularly small-capitalization companies 
such as ours, have experienced wide fluctuations that have not necessarily been related to the operations, 
performances, underlying asset values, or prospects of such companies. For these reasons, the price of our 
common shares can also be expected to be subject to volatility resulting from purely market forces over which 
we will have no control.  Further, despite the existence of a market for trading in our common shares in Canada, 
our stockholders may be unable to sell significant quantities of common shares in the public trading markets 
without a significant reduction in the price of the stock. 



 
-14- 

Dilution through the granting of options. 
 
Because our success of is highly dependent upon our employees, we may in the future grant to some or all of our 
key employees, directors and consultants options to purchase our common shares as non-cash incentives.  Those 
options may be granted at exercise prices below those for the common shares prevailing in the public trading 
market at the time or may be granted at exercise prices equal to market prices at times when the public market is 
depressed.  To the extent that significant numbers of such options may be granted and exercised, the interests of 
our other stockholders may be diluted. 
 
New legislation, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, may make it difficult for us to retain or attract 
officers and directors. 
 
We may be unable to attract and retain qualified officers, directors and members of board committees required 
to provide for effective management as a result of the recent and currently proposed changes in the rules and 
regulations that govern publicly-held companies.  The Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 has resulted in a series of 
rules and regulations by the Securities and Exchange Commission that increase responsibilities and liabilities of 
directors and executive officers.  The perceived increased personal risk associated with these recent changes 
may deter qualified individuals from accepting these roles. 
 
While we believe we have adequate internal control over financial reporting, we are required to evaluate our 
internal controls under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  Any adverse results from such 
evaluation could result in a loss of investor confidence in our financial reports and have an adverse effect on the 
price of our shares of common stock. 
 
Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as a small business issuer, we expect that beginning 
in our annual report for the year ended June 30, 2007, we will be required to furnish a report by management on 
our internal controls over financial reporting.  Such report will contain among other matters, an assessment of 
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, including a statement as to whether or not our 
internal control over financial reporting is effective.  This assessment must include disclosure of any material 
weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting identified by our management.  Starting with our 
annual report for the year ended June 30, 2008, such report must also contain a statement that our auditors have 
issued an attestation report on our management’s assessment of such internal controls.  Public Company 
Accounting Oversight Board Auditing Standard No. 2 provides the professional standards and related 
performance guidance for auditors to attest to, and report on, our management’s assessment of the effectiveness 
of internal control over financial reporting under Section 404. 
 
While we believe our internal control over financial reporting is effective, we cannot be certain that we will be 
able to complete our evaluation, testing and any required remediation in a timely fashion in order to comply 
with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  During the evaluation and testing process, if we identify 
one or more material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, we will be unable to assert that 
such internal control is effective.  If we are unable to assert that our internal control over financial reporting is 
effective as of June 30, 2007 (or if our auditors are unable to attest that our management’s report is fairly stated 
or they are unable to express an opinion on the effectiveness of our internal controls), we could lose investor 
confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, which would have a material adverse 
effect on our stock price. 
 
Failure to comply with the new rules may make it more difficult for us to obtain certain types of insurance, 
including director and officer liability insurance, and we may be forced to accept reduced policy limits and 
coverage and/or incur substantially higher costs to obtain the same or similar coverage.  The impact of these 
events could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on our board of 
directors, on committees of our board of directors, or as executive officers. 
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Because all of our assets and our officers and directors are located outside the United States of America, it 
may be difficult for an investor to enforce within the United States any judgments obtained against us or any 
of our officers and directors.  
 
All of our assets are located outside of the United States and we do not currently maintain a permanent place of 
business within the United States.  In addition, our directors and officers are nationals and/or residents of 
countries other than the United States, and all or a substantial portion of such persons' assets are located outside 
the United States.  As a result, it may be difficult for an investor to effect service of process or enforce within 
the United States any judgments obtained against us or our officers or directors, including judgments predicated 
upon the civil liability provisions of the securities laws of the United States or any state thereof.  In addition, 
there is uncertainty as to whether the courts of Canada and other jurisdictions would recognize or enforce 
judgments of United States courts obtained against us or our directors and officers predicated upon the civil 
liability provisions of the securities laws of the United States or any state thereof, or be competent to hear 
original actions brought in Canada or other jurisdictions against us or our directors and officers predicated upon 
the securities laws of the United States or any state thereof. 
 
We may issue additional shares of common stock in public offerings or private placements so your ownership 
interest in us may be diluted.  
 
Because we may issue shares of common stock in public offerings or private placements in order to raise capital 
for our operations, your ownership interest may be diluted which results in your percentage of ownership in us 
decreasing. 
 
We may be a passive foreign investment company, which may result in material adverse U.S. federal income 
tax consequences to U.S. investors. 
 
Investors in our common shares that are U.S. taxpayers should be aware that we may be a passive foreign 
investment company under Section 1297(a) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code (a “PFIC”).  If we are or become 
a PFIC, generally any gain recognized on the sale of our common shares and any excess distributions (as 
specifically defined), paid on our common shares must be ratably allocated to each day in a U.S. taxpayer’s 
holding period for our common shares. The amount of any such gain or excess distribution allocated to prior 
years of such U.S. taxpayers holding period for our common shares generally will be subject to U.S. federal 
income tax at the highest tax applicable to ordinary income in each such prior year, and the U.S. taxpayer will 
be required to pay interest on the resulting tax liability for each such prior year, calculated as if such tax liability 
had been due in each such prior year. 
 
Alternatively, a U.S. taxpayer that makes a Qualified Electing Fund (a “QEF”) election with respect to their 
investment generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on such U.S. taxpayer’s pro rata share of our net 
capital gain and ordinary earnings (as specifically defined and calculated under U.S. federal income tax rules), 
regardless of whether such amounts are actually distributed by us.  U.S. taxpayers should be aware, however, 
that there can be no assurance that we will satisfy record keeping requirements under the QEF rules or that we 
will supply U.S. taxpayers with required information under the QEF rules, in the event that we are a PFIC and a 
U.S. taxpayer wishes to make a QEF election.  As a second alternative, a U.S. taxpayer may make a mark-to-
market election if we are a PFIC and our common shares are marketable stock (as specifically defined).  A U.S. 
taxpayer that makes a mark-to-market election generally will include in gross income, for each taxable year in 
which we are a PFIC, an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (a) the fair market value of our common shares as 
of the close of such taxable year over (b) such U.S. taxpayer’s adjusted tax basis in our common shares. 
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Broker-Dealers may be discouraged from effecting transactions in our common shares because they are 
considered “Penny Stocks” and are subject to the Penny Stock Rules. 
 
Rules 15g-1 through 15g-9 promulgated under the Exchange Act impose sales practice and disclosure 
requirements on certain broker-dealers who engage in certain transactions involving a “penny stock".  Subject to 
certain exceptions, a penny stock generally includes any non-NASDAQ equity security that has a market price 
of less than $5.00 per share.  The market price of our shares over the year ended June 30, 2006 was consistently 
below $5.00 and our shares are deemed penny stock for the purposes of the Exchange Act.  The additional sales 
practice and disclosure requirements imposed upon broker-dealers may discourage broker-dealers from effecting 
transactions in our shares, which could severely limit the market liquidity of the shares and impede the sale of 
such shares in the secondary market. 
 
Under the penny stock regulations, a broker-dealer selling penny stock to anyone other than an established 
customer or "accredited investor" (generally, an individual with net worth in excess of US$1,000,000 or an 
annual income exceeding US$200,000, or US$300,000 together with his or her spouse) must make a special 
suitability determination for the purchaser and must receive the purchaser's written consent to the transaction 
prior to sale, unless the broker-dealer or the transaction is otherwise exempt. 
 
In addition, the penny stock regulations require the broker-dealer to deliver, prior to any transaction involving a 
penny stock, a disclosure schedule prepared by the US Securities and Exchange Commission relating to the 
penny stock market, unless the broker-dealer or the transaction is otherwise exempt.  A broker-dealer is also 
required to disclose commissions payable to the broker-dealer and the registered representative and current 
quotations for the securities.  Finally, a broker-dealer is required to send monthly statements disclosing recent 
price information with respect to the penny stock held in a customer's account and information with respect to 
the limited market in penny stocks. 
 
We do not intend to pay cash dividends and there is no assurance that we will ever declare cash dividends. 
 
We intend to retain any future earnings to finance our business and operations and any future growth.  
Therefore, we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. 
 
ITEM 4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY 
 
History and Development of the Company 
 
Our registered office in British Columbia is located at 595 Howe Street, 10th Floor, Vancouver, British 
Columbia, Canada V6C 2T5. Our head office and principal office is located at 595 Howe Street, Suite 305, 
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6C 2T5.  Our telephone number is (604) 484-8264.  We pay rent of 
$2,000 per month for office space. We lease a total of approximately 1,100 square feet from Trafalgar Financial 
(1985) Ltd., pursuant to a written lease agreement. 
 
We were incorporated under the name, TCH Minerals Inc. on February 6, 2004, by registration of our 
Memorandum and Articles under the Company Act of British Columbia.  Our name was changed to Ripple Lake 
Minerals Inc. on May 13, 2004, and to Ripple Lake Diamonds Inc. on July 26, 2004.  
 
We do not have any subsidiaries. Further, we have no plans to change our business activities or to combine with 
another business, and are not aware of any events or circumstances that might cause our plans to change.  
 
On January 6, 2005, we completed our initial Canadian public offering of shares for gross proceeds of 
$1,600,000.  Our shares of common stock began trading on the TSX Venture Exchange on January 7, 2005 
under the symbol RLD.  A total of 4,000,000 shares were issued in the offering at a price of $0.40 per share.  



 
-17- 

During the year ended June 30, 2006 we completed three private placement offerings to raise an aggregate of 
$2,539,359, as follows: 
 
On September 27, 2005, we completed a non-brokered private placement of 622,466 units at a price of $0.45 per 
unit.  Each unit consisted of one flow-through common share and one-half a share purchase warrant to purchase 
a non-flow through common share, exercisable until September 27, 2006 at a price of $0.50 per share. 
 
On January 24, 2006, we completed a non-brokered private placement of 5,482,667 units at $0.15 per unit.  
Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant.  2,116,667 of the units consisted of 
flow-through common shares and warrants to purchase non-flow through common shares. Each whole warrant 
entitles the holder to acquire an additional common share of the Company at a price of $0.20 per share, 
exercisable until January 24, 2008. 
 
During May and June 2006, we completed a brokered and non-brokered placement of 6,385,999 units at $0.225 
per unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant. 1,627,778 of the units 
consisted of flow-through common shares and warrants to purchase non-flow through common shares.  Each 
whole warrant entitles the holder to acquire an additional common share at a price of $0.30 per share, 
exercisable for a period of two years from closing. 
 
Business Objectives 
 
Our principal business carried on and intended to be carried on by us is the acquisition and exploration of 
natural resource properties.  Our objective is to locate and develop economic diamond deposits.  We intend on 
expending our existing cash resources to carry out exploration on our mineral properties, to pay for 
administrative costs during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007, and for working capital.  We may decide to 
acquire other property interests in addition to mineral property interests currently held by us. 
 
Business Overview 
 
Since our inception in 2004, we have been in the business of acquiring, exploring and evaluating interests in 
mineral properties.  Our current property interests are held for the purposes of exploration for diamonds.   
 
Our properties are the TCH Project in Ontario and the KMD Property in Nunavut.  We are an exploration stage 
corporation.  An exploration stage corporation is one engaged in the search for mineral deposits or reserves 
which are not in either the development or production stage.  We intend to conduct exploration activities on our 
properties.  
 
We are an exploration stage company and there is no assurance that a commercially viable mineral deposit 
exists on any of the property, and further exploration will be required before a final evaluation as to the 
economic and legal feasibility is determined.  
 

TCH Project, Ontario 
 
We acquired by staking seven blocks of claims, named the Ripple Lake Claim Block, the Sandspit Claim Block, 
the Steel River Claim Block, the Pic Claim Block, the Foxtrap Claim Block, the Killala Claim Block, and the 
Islington Claim Block, located in north-central Ontario in the Thunder Bay Mining Division, known as the TCH 
Project. These properties comprise a total of 2,504 claim units in 182 claims with a total area of 40,064 hectares 
("ha").  
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We also entered into five agreements dated March 2004, April 2005 and June 2005, whereby we acquired 
options (the “Options”) to earn a 100% interest in certain mineral claims, representing 167 units or 2,672 ha, 
located in the Walsh, Foxtrap Lake and Killala Townships in the Province of Ontario, known as the TCH 
Project, for total cash consideration of $24,500 and total share consideration of 40,000 common shares. As of 
June 30, 2006, we made additional cash payments totaling $100,000 and issued 200,000 common shares for the 
Options.  
 
During the year ended June 30, 2006 we abandoned one of the option agreements consisting of 38 units. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2006, we staked an additional 5,411 units or approximately 86,600 ha in an area 
that is contiguous to the optioned properties, for a cost of $449,087.  As at June 30, 2006, we incurred staking 
costs of $697,857 and our interest in the TCH Project now totals approximately 143,300 ha. 
 
The future annual payments of cash and shares required under these Options are as follows: 
 
 Common 
 Cash   Shares 

  2007 58,000 105,000 
  2008 110,000 85,000 
  2009 30,000 20,000 
 
   198,000 210,000 
 
Subsequent to June 30, 2006, we issued 40,000 common shares and paid an additional $28,000. 
 
We are also required to make all expenditures required to maintain the mineral claims in good standing and to 
pay the optionors 2% of net smelter returns from the properties upon commercial production. 
 
To maintain the above claims in good standing, we are required to spend a minimum of $400 per unit on 
assessment work during the first two years after staking and $400 per unit per year thereafter.  
 
In addition to the above described properties, we entered into a property sharing agreement dated July 1, 2004 
with Phoenix Matachewan Mines Inc., the holder of 18 mineral claims containing 189 units to the west of the 
TCH Project.  Pursuant to the Phoenix Agreement we have the right to explore for mineralized material on 
Phoenix’s property and to acquire any part of the same by issuing 300,000 shares to Phoenix and granting to 
Phoenix a net returns royalty equal to 1% of the gross proceeds received by us if we prepare a feasibility study 
which incorporates reserves on such part of the Phoenix property. Phoenix was granted reciprocal rights for 
precious and base metals on the southern part of our property which is adjacent to Phoenix’s properties.   
 
We entered into two option agreements to acquire 51 additional claims within our TCH claim block in the Lake 
Superior area of Ontario.  We may extend the options by cash payments and share issuances on each of April 30, 
2006 (total of $20,000 and 40,000 shares, which was paid), April 30, 2007 (total of $20,000 and 40,000 shares), 
and April 30, 2008 (total of $40,000 and 40,000 shares).   
 
We entered into an agreement with Nuinsco Resources Limited pursuant to which we had the right to explore 
for diamonds on Nuinsco’s nine claims in the Killala Township.  These claims are within the boundary of our 
TCH Project.  We were to conduct and file the assessment work required on the Nuinsco claims prior to May 30, 
2006 and make annual payments of cash and stock to extend the option until May 30, 2008.  During the year 
ended June 30, 2006, we abandoned our rights under the agreement.   
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KMD Property, Nunavut 

 
Pursuant to an agreement dated May 11, 2004 with KM Diamond Exploration Ltd. (the “Optionor”), we were granted 
an option, hereinafter called the "KMD Option," to purchase an 80% interest in certain mineral claims (approximately 
32,300 acres) located near Parker Lake and Brown Lake, Nunavut (the “KMD Project”).   
 
We have the right to earn the initial 80% interest in the KMD Project from the Optionor subject to certain terms 
including: 
 
(a) payment of the sum of $20,000 on the execution of the KMD Option, which has been paid; 
 
(b) payment of the sum of $150,000 and the issuance of 200,000 of our common shares, which has paid;  
 
(c) the issuance of 150,000 common shares to the Optionor on or before February 14, 2005, which shares have 

been issued, and an additional 150,000 common shares to the Optionor on or before February 14, 2006, 
which shares have been issued; and 

 
(d) the issuance of 200,000 common shares at the time we exercise the option or at any time prior to December 

31, 2007. 
 
As at June 30, 2006 we believe that we have fulfilled all of the requirements of the Option and may exercise the 
option by giving notice of exercise to the Optionor and by concurrently issuing 200,000 common shares at any time 
prior to December 31, 2007. 
 
The Optionor has staked additional mineral claims on our behalf in an area that is contiguous to the KMD Project, 
which claims are 100% owned by us.  The cost incurred to June 30, 2006 to stake these claims was $195,371, for 
which the Optionor was fully reimbursed.  Our interest in the KMD Project now totals approximately 151,000 acres.   
 
The KMD Project is located approximately 960 km east-northeast of Yellowknife, NWT and approximately 770 km 
east of Canada’s first producing diamond mine, the Ekati mine, operated by BHP Minerals. 
 
A minimum expenditure of $4.00 per acre is required during the first two years to maintain the claims in good 
standing.  However, the first filing of work need only be submitted on or before the second anniversary date of each 
claim.  If the claims are to be kept in good standing beyond the two-year period, a total of $2.00 per acre per year will 
have to be expended.  In addition, there is a $0.10 per acre fee for filing work on the claims. 
 
The Optionor is entitled to a royalty equal to 3% of gross revenue from the sale of diamonds mined from the property 
(the “3% Royalty”).  We may, at a time within three years after the exercise of the Option, purchase 1/3 of the 3% 
Royalty for a purchase price of $1,000,000, and may purchase an additional 1/3 of the 3% Royalty for an additional 
$1,000,000.  
 
In addition, we have the right to purchase the remaining 20% interest in the KMD Property at any time prior to the 
expiration of the three year period following the date of the exercise of the Option by issuing to KMD an additional 
200,000 common shares. 
 
On November 20, 2006, the optionor to the KMD Project gave notice of default to us with respect to the Option 
Agreement alleging that we failed to carry out the required work programs on the Brown Lake property.  We deny the 
default having spent in excess of the required amount under the direction, advice and supervision of our consultant 
(who is the principal of the optionor), and will vigorously defend our position, which is that upon the issuance of an 
additional 400,000 shares to the optionor, we will have earned a 100% interest in the Brown lake property, subject to 
a 3% royalty in favour of the optionor, in respect to which 1% of the 3% royalty may be purchased for $1,000,000, 
and an additional 1% of the royalty may be purchased for an additional $1,000,000. We intend to exercise this option.  
The ultimate outcome of this disagreement with the optionor is currently not determinable. 
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OUR PROPERTIES 
 

TCH Project, Ontario 
 
Summary 
 
We have staked multiple properties in the Marathon area of north-central Ontario that have potential for 
diamond deposits.  These 100% owned properties, together with certain optioned claims included within the 
contiguous claim block are comprised of a total of 143,300 ha and are collectively known as the TCH Project. 
 
The TCH Project is located in north-central Ontario west of the town of Marathon.  The Trans Canada Highway, 
the CPR mainline and two Ontario Hydro high voltage power lines pass through the TCH Project in the south 
part of the area.  The town of Marathon lies 30 km to the east on the Trans Canada Highway and the major city 
of Thunder Bay is 270km to the west.  Access into the northern part of the area is afforded by an extensive 
network of logging roads. 
 
Property Description and Location 
 
The TCH Project is located in north-central Ontario in the Thunder Bay Mining Division on NTS maps 42D15 
and 42E2 to the west and northwest of the town of Marathon.  They lie in a 45km by 30km area centered at 87o 
45’ W longitude and 45o 45’ N latitude that stretches north from the north shore of Lake Superior.  This project 
is comprised of a total of 143,300 ha.   
 
Certain limited areas of the TCH Project are crown grants or patented claims where the surface rights or both the 
surface rights and mineral rights are reserved.  Where only the surface rights are held, access cannot be denied 
to the holder of the mineral rights without due cause. 
 
To maintain the above claims in good standing, we are required to spend a minimum of $400 per unit on 
assessment work during the first two years after staking and $400 per unit per year thereafter.  
 
There are no known pre-existing liabilities, environmental or otherwise, in the area for which we can be held 
responsible. There are no unusual permit requirements for mineral exploration other than standard permitting for 
any issues related to water crossings where installation of a bridge is required. 
 
Accessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrastructure and Physiography 
 
The TCH Project lies approximately 30 km west of Marathon, Ontario. Marathon lies on Highway 17, the Trans 
Canada Highway, which provides all weather road access to the major centres of Thunder Bay to the west and 
Sault Ste. Marie to the east.  Marathon has a small airport, serviced by regional airlines, which provide 
passenger and freight service from the larger centers of the Province of Ontario.  
 
Access to the TCH Project is gained via the Trans Canada Highway, which passes the southern part of the 
Ripple Lake Claim Block.  An extensive network of logging roads, which originate off the TCH Project provide 
reasonable vehicle access to the northern claim blocks.  During exploration, access to the remoter parts of the 
properties might require a helicopter from Marathon.  For drilling purposes the terrain and vegetation permits 
the construction of temporary drill roads. 
 
The Canadian Pacific Railway mainline passes through the Ripple Lake Claim Block, as do two Ontario Hydro 
high voltage power lines.  All essential services, such as food and lodging, are available in the town of 
Marathon.  Marathon is the local logistical center of the three gold mines operating in the Hemlo area a further 
30 km to the east.  In addition to the comprehensive infrastructure, north-central Ontario features a resource-
based economy attuned to mining exploration and development. 
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The topography in the area consists of low rolling to rugged hills with numerous lakes and swamp filled valleys 
typical of the Canadian Shield.  The terrain is particularly rugged along the shore of Lake Superior on the Ripple 
Lake Claim Block, but becomes more subdued away for Lake Superior with distance to the north.  Elevations 
range from 600 feet at Lake Superior to 1,500 feet at the hilltops.  The average elevation is approximately 1,000 
feet above sea level, with a maximum relief of not more than 500 feet.  Glaciolacustrene deposits are generally 
restricted to low areas and may reach considerable depth in some of the larger drainage basins, but overburden is 
generally thin in most areas. 
 
The vegetation in the area is boreal forest.  On the higher ground the vegetation is predominantly spruce, birch 
and poplar with alder and maple undergrowth.  Thick cedar swamps are characteristic of the low wet areas 
located throughout project area.  All creeks and river systems drain southerly toward Lake Superior. 
 
Climate is moderately dry summers with temperatures as high as 340C and snowy winters with temperatures as 
low as –400C.  Exploration is possible year round with short hiatuses during the spring thaw and winter freeze 
up and is sometimes more efficient in the winter months when the water courses and swamps are frozen.  
 
History 
 
There was no previous diamond exploration activity on our property prior to our acquisition of the TCH Project. 
 
Geology 
 
The TCH Project lies at the junction of the Wawa and Quetico subprovinces of the Superior Structural Province 
of the Canadian Shield.  The rocks comprise east-west trending interbedded Archean meta-sedimentary and 
meta-volcanic rocks intruded by granitic and mafic intrusive rocks.  Younger Proterozoic intrusions include the 
Marathon diabase dyke swarm and alkalic intrusions, of the Coldwell and Prairie Lake alkalic-carbonatite 
complexes and lamprophyre dykes.  The large number of dykes mapped in the area is clearly evident in the 
airborne magnetic survey as long linear anomalies with a variety of strikes. Included are some distinct magnetic 
lows which appear to reflect a north-northeast set of lamprophyre dykes. 
 
The Trans-Superior Tectonic Zone or “TSTZ” extends north-northeast through the area and appears to be the 
locus of the considerable intrusive activity present.  The TSTZ is similar to other tectonic features in the 
Canadian Shield.  
 
Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves 
 
The TCH Project is in the exploration stage and there are no known mineral resources. 
 
Exploration and Development 
 
We completed our phase I exploration of the TCH Project during the fall of 2004 at a cost of approximately 
$530,000.  We did not find an ore body; however, based upon our exploration, we decided to move on to Phase 
II, which consisted of airborne geophysics and detailed sampling.  
 
During the year ended June 30, 2005 we expended an aggregate of $1,029,897 in deferred exploration and 
acquisition costs on the TCH Project.  
 
Following the 2004 Phase I program, we completed a 2005 Phase II heavy mineral sampling program, a remote 
sensing program, and a 2,695.6 km Aeroquest frequency time domain helicopter electromagnetic and high 
sensitivity cesium vapour magnetometer survey.  The 2005 exploration program also included a comprehensive 
airborne geophysical survey and the discovery of a kimberlite fragment on the original land package.   
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In addition to mineral sampling by the Ontario Geological Survey, the TCH Project was covered by a high-
resolution helicopter magnetic and electromagnetic geophysical survey.  This survey outlined a number of 
circular anomalies which look similar to the signature of kimberlite pipes found the world over.  The TCH 
Project covers a number of these anomalies and is strategically located to incorporate as many anomalies as 
possible.  
 
In November 2003, material collected from the diatreme yielded three micro-diamonds from a 19.83 kg sample. 
This was the first direct indication of primary diamond mineralization in the area, which led us to acquire a land 
position in the area.  We also carried out a number of ground geophysical surveys in 2004 to verify a selection 
of airborne geophysical targets on the TCH Project.  Several other, not readily accessible, geophysical targets on 
the TCH Project were examined by prospecting to determine their causes.   
 
We completed the analysis of the 401samples collected in 2004 during January 2005.  On April 11, 2005 we 
announced results of the analysis of the 2004 sampling program.  Kimberlite indicator minerals, or “KIM” 
(pyrope, picroilmenite, chrome spinel, olivine and chrome-diopside) were identified in 60% of the samples 
collected during the 2004 exploration program.  Picroilmenite is the predominant KIM and pyrope is the second 
most abundant. By the chemical composition, six pyrope grains of the 99 that were analyzed belong to the 
diamond association (G10) group, and about ten are close to the diamond association.  Among the seven 
analyzed kimberlitic chrome spinel grains, one belongs to the diamond field.  This suggests that some 
diamondiferous kimberlites may be among the clastic material suppliers for Quaternary sediments in the Ripple 
Lake property.  
 
Eight dispersion haloes of the kimberlitic, short-transit associations (KIM-1) were identified in 2004 in the TCH 
area.  Among them, there are three first-priority prospective areas, showing the highest promise for finding 
primary sources of the KIM haloes within their boundaries, and five other local areas that are also of exploration 
interest.  The OGS pyropes are also located in the recently identified priority areas of interest. 
 
Based on these encouraging results, we acquired through staking, new claim blocks to the west, north and east 
of the existing claim block area.  In addition to the 2004 mineral sampling, we completed, during the second 
quarter of 2005, an Aeroquest high-resolution helicopter magnetic and electromagnetic geophysical survey over 
the northern half of the TCH Diamond Project.   
 
During the year ended June 30, 2006, we engaged Condor Consulting Inc. of Colorado to complete a 
geophysical interpretation of the existing 1999 Ontario Geological Survey’s airborne magnetic and 
electromagnetic data, and integrate that information with the results of the 2005 Aeroquest helicopter airborne 
geophysical survey in order to identify kimberlite-pipe-like anomalies. 
 
During the year we expended $1,161,938 in deferred exploration and acquisition costs on the TCH Project.   
 
During the 2005 field season, 546 new samples for diamond and diamond indicator minerals were collected and 
panned in the field in the TCH claim block.  The samples were collected throughout the claim block from till 
sediments (231 samples), lake sediments (111 samples), alluvial sediments (62 samples), glaciofluvial sediments 
(135 samples), and colluvial and other sediments (seven samples), with each sample consisting of approximately 
20 litres (30 kilograms) of material. 
 
Detailed sampling was organized within eight local areas that had demonstrated high concentrations of 
kimberlite indicator minerals or KIM grains, based on the results of sampling in 2004 in areas that also included 
magnetic or EM anomalies outlined in the recent airborne geophysical interpretation. 
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During the course of the detailed sampling, picroilmenite halos composed of large (two to three millimetres in 
size) grains were established in the northeastern part of the area.  In one of the samples from this area, a 
kimberlite-like rock fragment, 20 by 15 by nine millimetres in size, was found.  The kimberlitic-like sample 
shows a combination of characteristic features typical of kimberlites, lamproites and ultramafic lamprophyres, 
and therefore is of kimberlite-lamproite composition. 
 
The sample concentrates were delivered to the KMD/Institute of Diamonds Laboratory in Moscow to be 
processed and for mineralogical analysis.  They were treated with heavy liquids, by magnetic and paramagnetic 
separation, and studied for the presence of KIMs: pyrope garnet, picroilmenite, chrome spinel, chrome-diopside 
and magnesian olivine.   
 
At the end of October 2006, we received the final report KM Diamond Exploration Ltd. summarizing the results 
of the 2005 sampling.  More than 11,900 kimberlite indicator mineral (KIM) grains were identified in the 
samples including 85 pyrope grains, 9,150 picroilmenite grains, 595 chrome spinel grains, 496 clinopyroxene 
grains and 1591 olivine grains.  All the pyrope grains have kimberlitic, short transported origin: they are 
angular, with relics of magmatic surfaces.  Approximately 5 % of pyrope grains belong to the diamond 
association (G10 pyropes); the rest are lherzolitic (G9) pyropes. 
 
Most of picroilmenite grains have no erosion marks of transportation and in addition, many picroilmenite grains 
are coarser than 1 mm (up to 10-12 mm) in size, bear films of kimberliticlike material on their surfaces, 
leucoxene and perovskite rims.  These picroilmenite grains are similar in mineral chemistry to kimberlitic 
picroilmenite.  According to conclusions of Dr. Felix Kaminsky, of KM Diamond Exploration Ltd., these grains 
were transported for only a few hundred meters from their primary source(s) which may be diamondiferous 
Group-1 kimberlite(s). 
 
The pyrope and picroilmenite grains as well as other non-rounded, short-transit KIM’s (chrome spinel, chrome-
diopside and magnesian olivine) form a linear dispersion halo elongated in NNE direction (approximately 20 km 
x 1 km in size).  Judging by the morphology of the KIMs, their kimberlitic source(s) are located within this halo. 
 
In addition, there is a significantly higher than average picroilmenite concentration and the presence of pyrope 
grains trending into the new RLD claims acquired last year which might reflex a new promising KIM dispersion 
halo extending northward. 
 
Besides the short-transit KIM association, there are a number of single, well-rounded grains of picroilmenite and 
chrome spinel which are kimberlitic by their composition.  These KIM’s may belong to remote kimberlitic 
source(s), possibly located within the major tectonic zone tracing NNE and within the expanded RLD claim 
group.  In this case, the KIM haloes identified within the area explored in 2004-2005 may represent only the 
southernmost part of a new kimberlitic province. 
 
As at the date hereof we have not located mineralized material and we do not have an ore body.  There is no 
assurance that we will ever find mineralized material or that the TCH Project contains an ore body. 
 

KMD Property, Nunavut 
 
We were granted an option to purchase a 80% interest in certain mineral claims containing approximately 
32,300 acres located near Parker Lake and Brown Lake, Nunavut and we acquired by staking additional 
contiguous mineral claims, which claims are 100% owned by us, for a total of approximately 151,000 acres (the  
the “KMD Property”). The KMD Property is located approximately 960 km east-northeast of Yellowknife, 
NWT and approximately 770 km east of Canada’s first producing diamond mine, the Ekati mine, operated by 
BHP Minerals. 
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Summary  
 
The property lies within the Western Churchill Craton, Hearne Province, and is underlain by metasediments and 
gneisses of the MacQuiod belt and the Cross Bay plutonic complex, both of which are early Proterozoic in age.  
 
Property Description and Location 
 
The KMD Property is located in Nunavut, approximately 120 km NW of Rankin Inlet, and is defined by 
geographical co-ordinates: 63o 39’ N in the south and 63o 45’N in the north, and 94o 05’ W in the west and 93o 
50’W in the east, within topo-sheets 55M9 and 55N12.  All of the claims are unsurveyed and unpatented.  
 
A minimum expenditure of $4.00 per acre is required during the first two years to maintain the claims in good 
standing.  However, the first filing of work need only be submitted on or before the second anniversary date of 
each claim. If the claims are to be kept in good standing beyond the two-year period, a total of $2.00 per acre 
per year will have to be expended.  In addition, there is a $0.10 per acre fee for filing work on the claims. 
 
Accessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrastructure and Physiography 
 
Access to the area is by ski or float equipped aircraft or helicopter only, with the closest base being the float 
plane base located at Rankin Inlet, approximately 150 kilometres to the southeast.  A charter helicopter is often 
based in Rankin Inlet and can be utilized on a casual basis.  Fly camp style fieldwork can be completed using the 
Rankin helicopter, but a charter helicopter will need to be positioned on the KMD Property for full time work. 
There are several eskers in the area and some can be used as natural airstrips for tundra tire equipped twin otter 
fixed wing aircraft to position camp equipment, mobilize crews and provide other support services.  As well, 
float equipped fixed wing aircraft can land in many of the lakes throughout the area.  
 
Rankin Inlet is serviced by commercial airline passenger service from points to the south including Yellowknife 
NWT and Winnipeg Manitoba, as well as Iqaluit to the east. Food, accommodation and expediting support 
services are available in Rankin Inlet.  
 
The KMD Property is located in the barren lands, approximately 15 kilometers south of tidewater in 
Chesterfield Inlet off Hudson Bay.  Small stunted trees and shrubs with moss and lichen comprise the dominant 
vegetation types.  The climate is sub-arctic and experiences long, cold winters with temperatures dropping to -
50°C.  Summers are short and temperatures can reach +25°C.  Daylight hours are long in the summer as the 
project area is in the far northern portion of Canada.  Elevations for the property vary from 250 metres to 410 
metres above sea level.  Abundant lakes, bogs and swamps with low relief characterize the region. 
 
It is possible to conduct exploration activities year-round with the exception of spring break-up and winter 
freeze-up.  During the winter months diamond drilling would be the only type of exploration reasonably 
possible and it would be hampered by the cold weather.  Both airborne and ground geophysical surveys can be 
completed during the spring and fall on the snow as long as there is enough light to work.  Winter surface 
sampling and mapping is virtually impossible due to snow cover and frozen ground conditions.  Water is 
extremely abundant and is available in sufficient quantities to supply virtually any mining need.  Power will 
need to be obtained via diesel generator, as there is no power infrastructure whatsoever in this part of Canada. 
The KMD Property covers a large area with plenty of space for the building of infrastructure for any advanced 
exploration or development. 
 
The Inuit of Nunavut has selected approximately 350,000 km2 of the area of Nunavut for ownership of surface 
rights hereinafter called the “Surface IOL” as part of the 1993 Nunavut Lands Claims Agreement (“NLCA”). 
Additionally, approximately 38,000 km2 of land or 2% of the area of Nunavut, also includes the rights to all 
subsurface minerals hereinafter called the “Subsurface IOL”. As a result, there are essentially three levels of 
land ownership within Nunavut, as defined by Article 19 of the NCLA: 
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1. Inuit Owned Lands (“IOL”) Surface and Subsurface Rights - (mineral rights included –Subsurface IOL); 
 
2. IOL Surface Rights Only (mineral rights that are administered by Federal Government through DIAND 

– Surface IOL; and 
 
3. Crown (Public) Lands (mineral rights that are administered by Federal Government - DIAND). 
 
History 
 
No previous diamond exploration activity has been conducted on the KMD Property.  
 
Geological Setting 
 
The KMD Property lies in a portion of the northern Hearne domain, western Churchill Province.  The Hearne 
province consists of Archean rocks of the Hearne Craton and overlying supracrustal rocks that were intensely 
reworked during the 1.8–1.9 Ga Trans-Hudson Orogen.  South of the Snowbird Tectonic Zone, the northern 
Hearne domain is predominantly composed of Archean juvenile crust which is interpreted to be underlain by 
continental crust of the Rae domain. 
 
There are two theories regarding the tectonic nature of Snowbird Tectonic Zone (STZ).  According to one 
theory, the STZ has been interpreted as an Early Proterozoic (Paleoproterozoic) suture between two Archean 
continents, the Rae and Hearne.  However, other geological and geophysical interpretations represent the STZ as 
an Early Proterozoic intraplate fault, while geochronological data indicate that it is an Archean structure.  The 
most recent data obtained suggests a more complicated picture for this tectonic zone. Baldwin et al. conclude 
that there is an important 1.9 Ga high P–T metamorphic event in the Snowbird tectonic zone that overprints an 
earlier Archean metamorphism (c. 2.52–2.55 Ga). 
 
The KMD Property area includes the eastern part of the Archean MacQuoid supracrustal belt and the Cross Bay 
plutonic complex.  The MacQuoid supracrustal belt is divided into a southern, predominantly metasedimentary 
homocline with panels of gneissic tonalite, flanked to the north by a predominantly volcanic belt intruded by 
tonalite-granodiorite plutons.  The oval Cross Bay plutonic complex is principally composed of tonalitic and 
dioritic gneiss units and granite mostly of Archean intrusions.  Along its southern margin, the plutonic complex 
is separated from the supracrustal belt by the approximately east-trending, strike-slip, mylonitic Big Lake shear 
zone.  Folding and boudinage of east-trending mafic dykes indicates that significant Paleoproterozoic 
deformation occurred in the Cross Bay complex. 
 
Property Geology 
 
The KMD property geology has not been mapped in detail other than specified above in regional geology.  
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Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves 
 
The KMD Property is at the exploration stage with no mineral resource or mineral reserve. 
 
Exploration and Development 
 
We completed a Phase I exploration program on the KMD Property during the fall of 2004.which consisted of 
taking mineral samples from the surface of the KMD property and concentrating them by hand panning and 
sending them to a laboratory for analysis for kimberlite indicator minerals.  We spent approximately $430,000 
on Phase I.  The result of that process was that an ore body was not discovered; however, we determined that 
further exploration is warranted.  
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, we completed a study of the nickel thermometry of some of the 
collected G-9 pyrope grains, using a highly sophisticated exploration technique recently developed in South 
Africa and determined that the temperature and pressure conditions at the KMD Property were correct for the 
formation of diamondiferous kimberlites and that a significant portion of the G-9 grains analyzed fall inside the 
diamond stability field. 
 
During the fourth fiscal quarter of 2005 we completed an airborne geophysical (magnetic and electromagnetic) 
survey of the KMD Property.  The survey was undertaken in order to further delineate possible sources (drill 
targets) of thousands of pyrope and other kimberlite indicator mineral grains, recovered from the samples 
collected in 2004. 
 
An extensive follow-up sampling program was carried out for us by KM Diamond Exploration Ltd. and a 
preliminary report of the summer 2005 field work was received by us on September 20, 2005.  That report 
contains sample location information and some preliminary geological discussions for the 752 samples collected 
in 2005.  Full analytic results will be available following completion of laboratory analysis of the samples, 
which will be available to us several months following payment of laboratory costs of the analytical work.  We 
will require further financing to fund such work. 
 
During the year, we expended $534,082 in deferred exploration and acquisition costs related to the KMD 
property, compared with $1,887,330 during the previous year.   
 
Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2006, we expended $31,557 in deferred exploration and acquisition costs 
on the KMD Property.  The major deferred expenses for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 were an 
assessment fee in the amount of $18,525 and geological costs in the amount of $13,032. 
 
Kimberlite indicator minerals (KIM’s); pyrope, chrome spinel, chrome-diopside and olivine) were found in 156 
of the submitted samples.  Pyrope is the most abundant (more than 4,400 grains were found in 127 samples), 
whereas chrome spinel, chrome-diopside and olivine were observed but less abundant.  Based on mineralogical 
criteria, all pyrope grains from Brown Lake area panned samples were classified as P1 group short-transit 
pyrope grains characterized by a predominance of angular grains, often with fragments of Type I primary 
magmatic surface and sometimes with relics of kelyphitic rim.  Based on the results of the analysis, all pyropes 
were low-Cr and medium-Cr G9 pyrope grains; no G10 pyropes were present.  According to the 2004 Ni-
thermometry conducted by Mineral Services Canada Inc., a high proportion of the pyropes tested would fall 
inside the diamond stability field, so the lack of G10 garnets is not a concern. 
 
Pyrope-bearing samples form a broad NW-trending zone (“halo”) between Brown Lake and Camp Lake.  Based 
on the analysis of KIM distribution in the KMD property, the “head” and middle parts of the main pyrope halo 
in the Brown Lake area have been outlined from all sides (NW, SW and NE).  The main pyrope halo is clearly 
bounded by numerous “barren” (KIM-free) panning samples on the NW, SW and NE, which significantly 
restricts the area of probable localization for the inferred primary source(s) of the pyrope aureole. 
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Within the large halo are a number of areas of intense concentrations of pyrope grains, in total 12 local areas 
were sampled in detail.  The bulk of the identified pyrope grains (more than 4,000 grains) were found within 
local areas.  In these areas, pyrope concentration is as high as several hundreds of grains per standard 20-litre 
sample.  Within some local areas, pyrope anomalies are associated with the airborne geophysical (magnetic and 
electromagnetic) anomalies generated from the 2005 geophysical survey completed by Fugro. 
 
LeBel Geophysics, of Vancouver, British Columbia, completed an additional geophysical interpretation of the 
Fugro survey results and integrated the Fugro airborne results with the company’s heavy mineral anomalies.  
Coincident airborne and heavy mineral sampling anomalies were noted in a number of areas that will require 
additional follow-up which should include prospecting, ground geophysics and drilling. 
 
As of the date hereof, we have not located mineralized material and we do not have an ore body.  There is no 
assurance that we will ever find mineralized material or that our property contains an ore body.  
 
Competitive factors  
 
The mining industry is fragmented.  We are a start up venture and compete with other exploration companies 
looking for mineralized material.  We are one of the smaller exploration companies in existence.  While we 
compete with other exploration companies, there is no competition for the exploration or removal of minerals 
from our properties.  Readily available markets exist in Canada and around the world for the sale of diamonds. 
However the saleability of diamonds depends upon their size, clarity and other characteristics and we may not 
be able to economically sell any diamonds that we are able to recover. 
 
Regulations 
 
Our mineral tenure in Nunavut is subject to the Territorial Lands Acts of Canada and the related Territorial 
Land Use Regulations.  This Act and these Regulations forth rules for  
 
(a) locating claims; 
 
(b) posting claims; 
 
(c) working claims; and 
 
(d) reporting work performed. 
 
In Ontario the rules governing those matters are contained in the Mining Act – Ontario. We must comply with 
these laws to operate our business. Compliance with these rules and regulations will not adversely affect our 
operations.  
 
Environmental law 
 
We will become subject to the Canadian Environmental Assessment Act if economic quantities of mineralized 
material were to be found and a mine was to be developed.  This Act deals with environmental matters including 
matters relating to the exploration and development of mining properties. Its goals are to protect the 
environment through a series of regulations affecting: 
 
1. Health and Safety; 
 
2. Archaeological Sites; and 
 
3. Exploration Access. 
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However, we are an exploration company and will not be required to conduct an environmental assessment 
unless a mine is ultimately developed on our properties. 
 
Exploration stage companies have no specific environmental requirements.  The only costs of compliance with 
environmental regulations in each of Ontario and Nunavut are the costs of returning the surface to its previous 
condition upon abandonment of the properties.  Normally those exploration reclaimation costs do not represent a 
significant expenditure.  We cannot speculate on those costs in light of our ongoing plans for exploration. 
 
Permits 
 
In Ontario there is no regulatory requirement which is required to be undertaken before conducting exploration 
on a mineral claim by the claim holder.  The KMD property is located in a geographical area in Nunavut which 
is under the control of the Kivalliq Inuit Association pursuant to the Nunavut Land Claims Agreement with the 
Government of Canada.  In order to carry out mineral exploration in the Kivalliq administered area a land use 
license must be obtained. On June 26, 2002 Felix Kaminsky obtained Land Use License No. KVL 102B259 
which authorizes prospecting to be carried out on the KMD property.  
 
Labor  
 
Initially, we intend to use the services of subcontractors for manual labor exploration work on our properties. 
Our only technical assistants will be our officers and directors.  
 
Employees and employment agreements  
 
We entered into two year employment contracts effective July 1, 2006 with Robert Lipsett and Foo Chan, 
pursuant to which Mr. Lipsett receives $6,000 per month as our President and Chief Executive Officer and Foo 
Chan receives $2,500 per month as our Chief Financial Officer.  The employment contracts terminated upon the 
resignation of Robert Lipsett as Chief Executive Officer and President and the resignation of Foo Chan as Chief 
Financial Officer, effective December 20th, 2006. 
 
We entered into a consulting agreement with Felix Kaminsky, our exploration manager, dated June 1, 2004, 
which contract was terminated by Dr. Kaminsky effective December 20th, 2006.   
 
We presently do not have pension, health, annuity, insurance, stock options, profit sharing or similar benefit 
plans; however, we may adopt plans in the future.  
 
Private Placements 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2006 we completed three private placement offerings to raise an aggregate of 
$2,539,359, as follows: 
 
On September 27, 2005, we completed a non-brokered private placement of 622,466 units at a price of $0.45 per 
unit.  Each unit consisted of one flow-through common share and one-half a share purchase warrant to purchase 
a non-flow through common share, exercisable until September 27, 2006 at a price of $0.50 per share. 
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On January 24, 2006, we completed a non-brokered private placement of 5,482,667 units at $0.15 per unit.  
Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant.  2,116,667 of the units consisted of 
flow-through common shares and warrants to purchase non-flow through common shares. Each whole warrant 
entitles the holder to acquire an additional common share of the Company at a price of $0.20 per share, 
exercisable until January 24, 2008. 
 
During May and June 2006, we completed a brokered and non-brokered placement of 6,385,999 units at $0.225 
per unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant. 1,627,778 of the units 
consisted of flow-through common shares and warrants to purchase non-flow through common shares.  Each 
whole warrant entitles the holder to acquire an additional common share at a price of $0.30 per share, 
exercisable for a period of two years from closing. 
 
The proceeds from the private placements were used for maintenance, assessment and exploration activities 
associated with our exploration properties in Ontario and Nunavut and for working capital. 
 
As of September 30, 2006 we had a working capital of approximately $208,896.  Our 2007 exploration 
programs on our properties have yet to be determined.  We have sufficient funding to cover our basic 
administrative costs for a period of six months.  If we undertake any additional exploration activities on our 
properties or acquire additional properties in the future we may have to seek financing, most likely through the 
issuance of equity securities.   
 
Organizational Structure 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Property, Plants and Equipment 
 
We are engaged in the exploration for diamonds and have two active diamond exploration projects; the 
TCH Diamond Project in Ontario and the KMD Project in Nunavut.  Our objective is to locate and 
develop economic diamond deposits. 
 
Our TCH Project comprises approximately 143,300 hectares located in the Province of Ontario.  The TCH 
Project is located in north-central Ontario west of the town of Marathon, in the Walsh, Foxtrap Lake and Killala 
Townships.   
 
Our KMD Property comprises approximately 151,000 acres in an area undergoing active exploration by leading 
diamond exploration companies.  The KMD Property is located approximately 960 km east-northeast of 
Yellowknife, NWT and approximately 770 km east of Canada’s first producing diamond mine, the Ekati mine, 
operated by BHP Minerals. 
 
ITEM 5. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
 
We are a start-up, exploration stage company and have not yet generated or realized any revenues from our 
business operations. 
 
We are engaged in the exploration for diamonds and have two active diamond exploration projects   Our 
current property interests are held for the purposes of exploration for precious metals and diamonds. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2006, we reported interest income of $1,990 as compared to $2,256 for the period 
ended June 30, 2005.  The interest was earned on our cash and cash equivalents held during the year.   
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For the year ended June 30, 2006, we had net losses of $467,636 ($0.02 per share) compared to net losses of 
$921,040 ($0.05 per share) for the year ended June 30, 2005.   Our first full year of operations was fiscal 2005, 
during which we completed our public offering and carried out significant work on our properties, which is 
reflected in our net loss for the fiscal 2005.  The loss in 2006 was primarily attributable to stock-based 
compensation, filing fees, management fees, professional fees and public and shareholder relations expenses. 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 a total of 1,480,000 stock options were granted to directors, officers 
and consultants, with exercise prices ranging between $0.22 and $0.40 per share, with expiry of five years from 
the date of granting.  No options were exercised as of the year ended June 30,. 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 a total of 1,700,000 stock options were granted to directors, officers 
and consultants, exercisable at a price of $0.40 per share, with expiry dates ranging between one and five years 
from the date of granting.  No options were exercised as of the year ended June 30, 2005. 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, 12,179,899 share purchase warrants were issued as part of three 
private placements, with exercise prices ranging between $0.20 and $0.50 per share, with expiry dates ranging 
from September 27, 2006 and June 8, 2008.   No share purchase warrants were exercised as of the year ended 
June 30, 2006 and 300,000 warrants had expired. 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, 400,000 share purchase warrants were issued to our agent with 
respect to our public offering, with an exercise price of $0.40, expiring on January 6, 2006.  An additional 
1,333,334 share purchase warrants were issued as part of a private placement, with an exercise price of $0.50 
per share, expiring on June 15, 2007.   None of the share purchase warrants were exercised as of the year ended 
June 30, 2005. 
 
Expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 consisted of management fees, office, public and shareholder 
relations, filing fees, transfer agent fees and rent and other expenses that support our daily operations.  Expenses 
for the year ended June 30, 2006 were $590,790, being a decrease of $395,506 compared to general and 
administrative expenses of $986,296 during the year ended June 30, 2005.  The lower expenses was primarily 
due to a higher stock-based compensation expense in the previous year ($183,750 in 2006 compared to 
$611,000 in 2005). 
 
The increase in expenses for fiscal 2005 relate to our first full year of operations, which included completion of 
our public offering and carrying out exploration work on our properties.  The expenses incurred included 
management fees of $102,000 (2004 - $Nil), public and shareholder relations of $107,218 (2004 - $Nil), 
professional fees of $69,615 (2004 - $17,978), filing fees of $45,284 (2004 - $Nil), rent of $18,000 (2004 - 
$Nil), transfer agent fees of $10,487 (2004 - $Nil), office expenses of $7,580 (2004 - $106), printing costs of 
$2,264 and travel expenses of $7,846 (2004 - $Nil).   
 
The major expenses for the year ended June 30, 2006 were $183,750 stock-based compensation expense as a 
result of our approving 1,480,000 stock options, compared to $611,000 in the previous year; filing fees in the 
amount of $29,475, compared to $45,284 in the previous year.  The lower amount in 2006 is mainly due to a 
one-time listing fee ($22,500) paid in 2005 to the TSX for listing on the exchange.  Management fees were 
$84,500c compared to $102,000 for the previous year.  The lower amount in 2006 is due to no payment made to 
a former director since December 2005.  Office expenses were $27,104, compared to $7,580 for the previous 
year.  The higher amount in 2006 is due to a write off of $20,000 relating to a failed financing proposal.  
Professional fees were $119,839, compared to $69,615 in the previous year.  The higher amount in 2006 is due 
to the adjustment in 2006 to the accrual for the 2005 audit fee and fees incurred for quarterly filings as 2006 is a 
complete four quarters compared to only two quarters in 2005.  Property investigation costs were $15,911, 
compared to $Nil for the previous year; public and shareholder relations was $87,118, compared to $107,218 in 
the previous year; rent was $21,500 compared to $18,000 in the previous year; and the transfer agent fees were 
$12,967, compared to $10,487 in the previous year. 
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Financing Activities 
 
During the year, we completed several share offerings as follows: 
 
On September 27, 2005, we completed a non-brokered private placement of 622,466 units at $0.45 per unit.  
Each unit consisted of one flow-through common share and one-half a share purchase warrant to purchase a 
non-flow through common share until September 27, 2006 at $0.50 per share. 
 
On January 24, 2006, we completed a non-brokered private placement of 5,482,667 units at $0.15 per unit.  
Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant. 2,116,667 of the units consisted of 
flow-through common shares and warrants to purchase non-flow through common shares. Each whole warrant 
entitles the holder to acquire an additional common share at a price of $0.20 per share until January 24, 2008. 
 
During May and June 2006, we completed a brokered and non-brokered placement of 6,385,999 units at $0.225 
per unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant. 1,627,778 of the units 
consisted of flow-through common shares and warrants to purchase non-flow through common shares.  Each 
whole warrant entitles the holder to acquire an additional common share at a price of $0.30 per share for a 
period of two years from closing. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2005, we completed our seed capital raising by the sale of 1,678,333 common 
shares at a price of $0.15 for proceeds of $251,750.  On January 7, 2005, we completed our initial Canadian 
public offering of 4,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.40 per share, for gross proceeds of $1,600,000. In 
addition to the agent’s compensation set forth below, we paid $105,457 of share issue costs to effect our initial 
public offering. 
 
On June 4, 2005, we completed a brokered private placement consisting of 2,222,223 units at a price of $0.45 
per unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one-half share purchase warrant, with each whole 
warrant being exercisable into one common share at an exercise price of $0.50 per share, exercisable for a 
period of two years from June 15, 2005.  Our agent, Canaccord Capital Corporation, received a cash 
commission of $75,000 and warrants to acquire up to 222,222 common shares at an exercise price of $0.50 per 
share, which warrants will expire on June 15, 2007.  In addition, we paid $3,800 in share issuance costs to effect 
the brokered private placement.   
 
Operating Results 
 
We recorded a net loss of $467,636 ($0.02 loss per share) in 2006 compared to a net loss of $921,040 ($0.05 
loss per share) in 2005.  The loss in 2006 was primarily attributable to stock-based compensation, filing fees, 
management fees, professional fees and public and shareholder relations expenses. 
 
We recorded a net loss of $921,040 ($0.05 loss per share) in 2005 compared to a net loss of $18,301 ($0.02 loss 
per share) in 2004 (representing five-month period ended June 30, 2004).  The loss in 2005 was attributable to 
stock-based compensation, filing fees, management fees, professional fees and public and shareholder relations 
expenses. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2006, we increased the carrying value of our mineral exploration properties in 
Canada to $4,881,420 from $3,185,400, representing an increase of $1,696,020.  The fiscal 2006 major 
exploration activities compared to fiscal 2005 were property acquisition and staking costs in the amount of 
$584,187, compared to $648,549; camp costs in the amount of $25,252, compared to $243,280; data analysis in 
the amount of $405,783, compared to $208,454; geological costs in the amount of $389,722, compared to 
$185,017; geophysics in the amount of $226,427, compared to $185,885; mapping in the amount of $47,149 , 
compared to $Nil; and mobilization and demobilization in the amount of $16,000, compared to $20,938. 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
We have no known mineral resources and are not in commercial production on any of our properties and 
accordingly, we do not generate cash from operations.  We finance development and exploration activities by 
raising capital from equity markets from time to time.  
 
As at June 30, 2006 we had cash, receivables and prepaid expenses of $387,622, compared with $388,407 at 
June 30, 2005 and total assets of $5,269,042 (2005: $3,575,400) and $47,962 (2005: $482,778) in payables and 
accruals.  We have no long-term debt. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2006 we completed three private placements to raise an aggregate of 
$2,539,359.  Our cash position increased from $262,734 at June 30, 2005 to $373,721 at June 30, 2006 as a 
result of major funding for the sample and processing costs less administrative expenses and costs of our 
exploration programs.   
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2006, we incurred $96,500 (2005 - $114,000) in management and consulting 
services rendered to certain officers and directors.  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 we also incurred 
$52,614 (2005 - $33,632) in mineral property exploration services rendered by a company controlled by a 
director and officer.   
 
These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amounts established 
and agreed to by the related parties. 
 
Outstanding Share Data 
 
As at November 29, 2006 we had 36,115,682 common shares outstanding.  We also had 2,680,000 incentive 
stock options outstanding, which are exercisable into an equivalent number of common shares.  In addition, 
there are 13,202,000 warrants outstanding that are exercisable into an equivalent number of common shares. 
 
Research and Development, Patents and Licences, etc.  
 
Not applicable. 
 
Trend Information  
 
Not applicable. 
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  
 
We do not have any material off balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current 
or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of 
operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources. 
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Contractual Obligations  
 
Not applicable. 
 
Safe Harbor  
 
Not applicable. 
 
ITEM 6. DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES 
 
Directors and Senior Management 
 
Our officers and directors are as follows: 
 

Name Age Position 

Timothy Crowhurst  40 President and Chief Executive Officer  
George Cavey, P.Geo. 51 Vice President of Exploration and Director  
William Schmidt 65 Director 
Ming Wong 59 Chief Financial Officer 

(1) Robert Lipsett resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer and Foo Chan resigned as Chief Financial Officer on 
December 20th, 2006. 

 
Each director holds office until our next annual general meeting of shareholders or until his successor is duly 
elected or appointed, unless his office is earlier vacated in accordance with our articles or he becomes 
disqualified to act as a director. Officers serve at the discretion of the board and as a practice are appointed each 
year at a board meeting held following the annual general meeting.  
 
Officers and Directors 
 
Our officers and directors are: 
 
Timothy Crowhurst, President and Chief Executive Officer.  Mr. Crowhurst graduated from the Université de 
Nice, France, with a Certificat pratique de langue francaise in 1986.  Mr. Crowhurst is President of Sea Level 
Communications Ltd., a strategic planning and issue management consultancy. Mr. Crowhurst is a senior 
business and public policy communicator in the areas of environmental issues management, product branding, 
and the development and implementation of strategic communications initiatives.  Prior to establishing Sea 
Level Communications Ltd. in 1993, he served as a senior policy and communications advisor to several 
Canadian Cabinet Ministers.  He will spend approximately 10% of his time on our affairs.  
 
George Cavey, P.Geo., Director, Vice-President Exploration.  Mr. Cavey graduated from the University of 
British Columbia with a Bachelor of Science in 1976.  He is the President of OreQuest Consultants Ltd., a 
Vancouver geological consulting company established in 1982.  Mr. Cavey currently serves on the Canadian 
Securities Administrators Mining Advisory Committee and has been a councilor of the Association of 
Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of British Columbia.  He is the former President of the Canadian 
Council of Professional Geologists.  He will spend approximately 20% of his time on our affairs.  
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William Schmidt, Director.  Mr. Schmidt is a Barrister and Solicitor with the form of Hemsworth Schmidt 
since 1971 (his principal business).  He is a director of Santa Cruz Ventures Ltd., Clifton Star Resources Inc., 
Exchequer Resource Corp. and Unbridled Energy Corporation, Secretary of Equus Energy Corp. and CFO of 
Carat Exploration Inc.; former Chief Financial Officer and director of Storm Cat Energy Corp., former director 
of Vault Minerals Inc.  He is a former director and officer of several other public companies since 1971.  He has 
a Bachelor of Arts Degree (1966) and Bachelor of Law Degree (1969) from the University of British Columbia.  
Mr. Schmidt will spend approximately 5% of his time on our business. 
 
Ming Wong, Chief Financial Officer.  Mr. Wong holds a Ph.D. (Biochemistry) obtained from the University of 
British Columbia in 1973 and a B.Sc. in Biological Chemistry (1969) from Simon Fraser University.  Mr. Wong 
has been with Sutcliffe Resources Ltd. (TSXV – SR), involved in the exploration of mineral properties in British 
Columbia and the acquisition and development of gold prospects in the Chukotka and Irkutsk regions of Russia, 
as administrator since December 2003.  He has also been the administrator for Saturn Minerals Inc. (TSXV – 
SMI), involved in exploring a number of mineral properties in British Columbia, since August, 2001 and has 
been a director and the chief financial officer since December 1, 2005 for Westminster Resources Ltd. which is 
completing its prospectus requirements to obtain a TSXV listing.  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia), we are required to have an audit 
committee.  The general functions of the audit committee are to review the overall audit plan and our system of 
internal controls, to review the results of the external audit and to resolve any potential dispute with our auditors. 
Our audit committee currently consists of Timothy Crowhurst, George Cavey and William Schmidt.  The Board 
of Directors has not appointed a compensation committee. 
 
Conflicts Of Interest 
 
Our directors and officers are aware of the existence of laws governing accountability of directors and officers 
for corporate opportunity and requiring disclosures by directors of conflicts of interest and we will rely upon 
such laws in respect of any directors' and officers' conflicts of interest or in respect of any breaches of duty by 
any of our directors or officers.  All such conflicts will be disclosed by such directors or officers in accordance 
with the British Columbia Business Corporations Act (“BCBCA”), and they will govern themselves in respect 
thereof to the best of their ability in accordance with the obligations imposed upon them by law. 
 
All of our directors are also directors, officers or shareholders of other companies that are engaged in the 
business of acquiring, developing and exploiting natural resource properties including properties in countries 
where we are conducting our operations.  Such associations may give rise to conflicts of interest from time to 
time.  Such a conflict poses the risk that we may enter into a transaction on terms which place us in a worse 
position than if no conflict existed.  Our directors are required by law to act honestly and in good faith with a 
view to our best interests and to disclose any interest which they may have in any project or opportunity of the 
company. However, each director has a similar obligation to other companies for which such director serves as 
an officer or director.  We have no specific internal policy governing conflicts of interest. 
 
The following table identifies, as of December 29, 2006, the name of each officer and director and any company 
(i) which employs such officer or director, (ii) for which such officer or director currently serves as an officer or 
director, or (iii) which is affiliated with such officer or director: 
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Name Company % of Stock Held 

Timothy Crowhurst Santa Cruz Ventures Inc. 0% 

George Cavey Staccato Gold Resources Ltd. 0% 

 Icon Industries Limited 0% 
 Orex Ventures Inc. 0% 
 Orko Gold Corporation 0% 
 Tri-Gold Resources Corp. 0% 

William Schmidt Clifton Star Resources Inc. 0% 

 Santa Cruz Ventures Inc. 0% 
 Exchequer Resource Corp. 0% 
 Equus Energy Corp. 0% 
 Carat Exploration Inc. 0% 
 Unbridled Energy Corporation 0% 
Ming Wong Sutcliffe Resources Ltd. 0.08% 
 Saturn Minerals Inc. 3.7% 
 Westminster Resources Ltd. 19.7% 
 
Executive Compensation 
 
The following table sets forth the compensation paid by us during the year ended June 30, 2005 to each of our 
officers, directors and one key employee.  This information includes the dollar value of base salaries, bonus awards 
and number of stock options granted.  Except as set out below, during the year ended June 30, 2006, no payments 
have been made, directly or indirectly, by us to our directors and officers or any parties related to them. 

Summary Compensation Table 

 Annual Compensation Long Term Compensation 

     Awards Payouts 

Name and Principal 
And Position 

Year 
Ended 

Salary 
(CDN$) 

Bonus 
(CDN$)

Other 
Annual 

Compensation  
(CDN$) 

Securities 
Under 

Options/ 
SARs 

Granted 
(#) 

Restricted 
Shares 

Or 
Restricted 

Share Units 
(CDN$) 

LTIP 
Payouts 
(CDN$) 

All other 
Compen-

sation 
(CDN$) 

Robert Lipsett (1) 
President and Director 

6/30/06 
6/30/05 
6/30/04 

$72,000 
$72,000 

-0- 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

80,000 
300,000 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

-0- 
-0- 
-0- 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

George Cavey 
Vice-President and 
Director 

6/30/06 
6/30/05 
6/30/04 

-0- 
-0- 
-0- 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

50,000 
100,000 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

-0- 
-0- 
-0- 

$52,614 
$33,632 

Nil 

Timothy Crowhurst 
Director 

6/30/06 
6/30/05 
6/30/04 

-0- 
-0- 
-0- 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
300,000 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

-0- 
-0- 
-0- 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Foo Chan (1) 
Chief Financial Officer 

6/30/06 
6/30/05 
6/30/04 

$12,000 
$12,000 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

200,000 
100,000 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

-0- 
-0- 
-0- 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Dr. Felix Kaminsky (1) 
Exploration Manager 

6/30/06 
6/30/05 
6/30/04 

-0- 
-0- 
-0- 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
250,000 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

-0- 
-0- 
-0- 

$48,018 
$84,829 

Nil 

(1) Robert Lipsett resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer and Foo Chan resigned as Chief Financial Officer on December 
20, 2006.  Dr. Felix Kaminsky resigned as Exploration Manager effective December 20, 2006. 
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On July 1, 2006, we entered into employment contracts with each of Robert Lipsett and Foo Chan, whereby Mr. 
Lipsett is paid $6,000 per month as our President and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Chan is paid $2,500 per month 
as our Chief Financial Officer.  Both employment contracts terminated on December 20th, 2006 when Mr. Lipsett 
resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer and Foo Chan resigned as Chief Financial Officer. 
 
George Cavey is the principal of Orequest Consultants Ltd.  Orequest Consultants Ltd. was paid a total of $52,614 
during the year ended June 30, 2006.   
 
Long-term Incentive Plans 
 
Other than through the grant of incentive stock options and management contracts, we do not have a long-term 
incentive plan for compensating our directors or officers. 
 
Pension Plan  
 
We do not provide retirement benefits for our directors or executive officers. 
 
Options and Stock Appreciation Rights (“SARs”) 
 
The following options were granted to the named executive officers and directors during the most recently completed 
financial year or subsequent thereto to the date of this report:  
 

Name 

Securities 
Under 

Option/SARs 
Granted (#) 

% of Total 
Options SARs 

Granted to 
Directors and 

Officers in 
Financial Year 

Exercise or 
Base Price 

($/Security) 

Market Value 
of Securities 
Underlyng 

Options/SARs 
on the Date of 

Grant 
($/Security) Expiration Date 

Robert Lipsett (1) 300,000 21.74% $0.40 $120,000 January 6, 2010 

 80,000 5.80% $0.25 $20,000 January 25, 2011 

George Cavey 100,000 7.25% $0.40 $40,000 January 6, 2010 

 50,000 3.62% $0.25 $12,500 January 25, 2011 

Timothy Crowhurst 300,000 21.74% $0.40 $120,000 January 6, 2010 

William Schmidt Nil 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 N/A 

Foo Chan (1) 100,000 7.25% $0.40 $40,000 January 6, 2010 

 150,000 10.87% $0.40 $60,000 September 21, 2010 

 50,000 3.62% $0.25 $12,500 January 25, 2011 

Dr. Felix Kaminsky (1) 250,000 18.11%% $0.40 $100,000 January 6, 2010 

(1) Robert Lipsett resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer and Foo Chan resigned as Chief Financial Officer on December 
20, 2006.  Dr. Felix Kaminsky resigned as Exploration Manager effective December 20, 2006. 

 
Aggregate Option/SAR Exercises During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year and Financial Year 
Option/SAR Values 

During the most recently completed year ended June 30, 2006, no stock options were exercised by the executive 
officers. 
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Termination of Employment or Change of Control 
 
We did not have a plan or arrangement for compensation received or that may be received by either Mr. Lipsett 
or Mr. Chan in the financial year ended June 30, 2006 or in the current financial year to compensate them in the 
event of the termination of employment (resignation, retirement, change of control) or in the event of a change 
in responsibilities following a change in control. 
 
Compensation of Directors 
 
Since our inception, our directors have not received fees for attendance of board meetings or other cash 
compensation in their capacity as directors.  The directors may be reimbursed for actual expenses reasonably 
incurred in connection with the performance of their duties as directors.  Directors are also eligible to receive 
incentive stock options to purchase common shares. 
 
Board Practices 
 
Our Board of Directors is elected at the annual general meetings of our shareholders.  Each director elected will 
hold office until the next annual meeting, or until his successor is duly elected or appointed, unless his office is 
earlier vacated in accordance with the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia). 
 
We have no director's service contracts.  
 
Audit Committee 
 
Our audit committee is comprised of Timothy Crowhurst, George Cavey, and William Schmidt.  Members of 
the audit committee oversee our accounting and financial reporting process and the audits of our financial 
statements.  The audit committee also receives and addresses complaints regarding accounting, internal controls, 
and auditing issues.  No complaints have been received by the audit committee as of the date hereof.  Further, 
the audit committee provides protection for whistle blowers.  Again, no whistle blowing issues have presented 
themselves as of the date hereof.  The audit committee functions in a collective manner with respect to all issues 
that come before it. 
 
At their first meeting following each annual general meeting, the directors must elect an audit committee 
consisting of no fewer than three directors, of whom a majority must not be officers or employees, to hold office 
until the next annual general meeting. 
 
Before a financial statement that is to be submitted to an annual general meeting is considered by the directors, it 
must be submitted to the audit committee for review with the auditor, and the report of the audit committee on 
the financial statements must be submitted to the directors thereafter. 
 
Employees 
 
We have no employees other than our officers and directors.  
 
Share Ownership 
 
The following table sets forth the common share ownership of each of our officers and directors. Each person 
has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares of common stock shown, and all ownership is of 
record and beneficial. 
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Name  

Number of 
Common 

Shares Owned Positions 

Percentage of 
Outstanding Common 

Shares [1] 

George Cavey 985,000 Vice-President and Director 2.70% 

Timothy Crowhurst 1,000,000 Director 2.74% 

William Schmidt Nil Director N/A 

Ming Wong Nil Chief Financial Officer N/A 

ALL DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 
OFFICERS AS A GROUP (4 
persons) 

1,985,000  5.44% 

[1]   Based on issued and outstanding share capital of 36,515,682 as of December 29, 2006.  
 
Options and Other Rights to Purchase Securities 
 
We are permitted to grant up to 10% of our issued and outstanding shares for issuance to directors, senior officers and 
key employees and consultants at prices set in accordance with the policies of the TSX Venture Exchange pursuant to 
our 2006 Stock Option Plan.  At our recent annual meeting of shareholders held on December 20th, 2006, the 
shareholders approved our 2006 Stock Option Plan, which has identical terms to the 2005 Stock Option Plan.  
Pursuant to the policies of the TSX Venture Exchange, we must seek shareholder approval to our plan at each annual 
meeting.  The proposed 2006 Stock Option Plan is subject to approval by the TSX Venture Exchange.  Options are 
typically exercisable for a period of up to 5 years and terminate within 90 days of the optionee ceasing to be in a 
qualifying relationship with the company.  
 
As of June 30, 2006, we have issued 2,680,000 incentive stock options to purchase shares of our common stock as 
follows: 
 

Option Holders 

Designation of 
Securities Under 

Option 

No. of Securities 
to be Acquired 
Upon Exercise 

Exercise 
Price Per 

Share Expiry Date 

Executive Officers (three persons) Common Shares 500,000 $0.40 January 6, 2010 

  150,000 $0.40 September 21, 2010 

  180,000 $0.25 January 25, 2011 

Directors who are not Executive 
Officers  Common Shares 300,000 $0.40 January 6, 2010 

  300,000 $0.25 January 25, 2011 

All other employees or past 
employees as a group Common Shares Nil $0.00 N/A 

All consultants as a group Common Shares 250,000 $0.40 January 6, 2010 

  150,000 $0.40 March 15, 2010 

  150,000 $0.40 September 21, 2010 

  700,000 $0.225 June 14, 2007 
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Escrowed Securities 
 
Pacific Corporate Trust Company (the "Escrow Agent") holds 6,000,000 of our common shares in escrow 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of an escrow agreement dated June 16, 2004 (the "Escrow Agreement"). 
The escrow restrictions provide that the Escrowed Securities may not be traded in, dealt with in any manner 
whatsoever or released, nor may we, our transfer agent or the escrow holders make any transfer or record any 
trading of the Escrowed Securities without the consent of the TSX Venture Exchange. 
 

Designation of Class Number of Securities Held in Escrow Percentage of Class (1) 

Common Shares 6,000,000 16.43% 
 
[1]  Based on an issued and outstanding share capital of 36,515,682 as of the date of December 29, 2006. 
 
[2]  The Escrowed Securities are held as follows: 
 

Name No. of Shares Held in Escrow Percentage of Escrow 

Robert Lipsett 3,540,000 59.0% 

Christopher Pollard 600,000 10.0% 

George Cavey 600,000 10.0% 

Timothy Crowhurst 600,000 10.0% 

Foo Chan 90,000 1.5% 

Bud Kanke 90,000 1.5% 

Steve Stares 180,000 3.0% 

Greg Hryhorchuk 180,000 3.0% 

Gordon Smith 120,000 2.0% 
 
Under National Policy 46 – 201 “Escrow for Initial Public Offerings”, securities held by Principals (as defined 
below) are required to be held in escrow in accordance with the national escrow regime applicable to initial 
public distributions.  Equity securities owned or controlled by Principals are subject to the escrow requirements. 
 
A “Principal” is defined as: 
 
(a) our directors and senior officers or of any of our material operating subsidiary of us, as listed in our 

prospectus; 
 
(b) our promoters during the two years preceding our offering; 
 
(c) those who own and/or control more than 10% of our voting securities immediately before and 

immediately after completion of our offering if they also have elected or appointed or have the right to 
elect or appoint a director or senior officer of us or of a material operating subsidiary of ours’; 

 
(d) those who own and/or control more than 20% of our voting securities immediately before and 

immediately after completion of our offering; and 
 
(e) associates and affiliates of any of the above. 
 
Our principals are our directors and senior officers or former directors and senior officers.   
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Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, the Principals agreed to deposit in escrow their Escrowed Securities with the 
Escrow Agent.  The Escrow Agreement provides that the Escrowed Securities will be released from escrow in 
equal tranches at six month intervals over the 36 months following the issue of the final receipt for our 
prospectus (that is 15% of each Principal’s holdings being released in each tranche with an initial 10% tranche 
being released on the date our securities are listed on the TSX Venture Exchange, being January 7, 2005). 
 
We are an “emerging issuer” as defined in Canadian National Policy 46 - 201 and if we achieve “established 
issuer” status during the term of the Escrow Agreement, we will “graduate” resulting in a catch-up release and 
an accelerated release of any securities remaining in escrow under the 18 month schedule applicable to 
established issuers as if we had originally been classified as an established issuer. 
 
Pursuant to the terms of the Escrow Agreement, the securities held in escrow may not be transferred or 
otherwise dealt with during the term of the Escrow Agreement unless the transfers or dealings with escrow are: 
 
(a) transfers to continuing or, upon their appointment, incoming directors and senior officers of us or of a 

material operating subsidiary, with approval of our board of directors; 
 
(b) transfers to an RRSP or similar trustee plan provided that the only beneficiaries are the transferor or the 

transferor’s spouse or children; 
 
(c) transfers upon bankruptcy to the trustee in bankruptcy; and 
 
(d) pledges to a financial institution as collateral for a bona fide loan, provided that upon a realization the 

securities remain subject to escrow. Tenders of Escrowed Securities to a take-over bid are permitted 
provided that, if the tenderer is a Principal of our successor upon completion of the take-over bid, 
securities received in exchange for tendered Escrowed Securities are substituted in escrow on the basis 
of our successor escrow classification. 

 
The TSX Venture Exchange may approve an accelerated release schedule if we, after listing, meet Tier 1 issuer 
listing requirements. Escrow agreements, in the form prescribed by the TSX Venture Exchange, restrict the sale, 
assignment, hypothecation and transfer of all escrowed shares without the prior written consent of the TSX 
Venture Exchange. TSX Venture Exchange policy provides that it will generally only permit a transfer of our 
escrowed shares to incoming principals. In the event of the bankruptcy or death of a holder of Escrowed 
Securities, the Escrow Agent, with written notification to the TSX Venture Exchange, may transmit such 
holders’ Escrowed Securities to the trustee in bankruptcy, executor, administrator or such other person as is 
legally entitled to become the registered owner of the Escrowed Securities. Escrowed Securities that are 
transferred to a trustee in bankruptcy will remain in escrow subject to the applicable Escrow Agreement. 
Escrowed Securities transferred upon death will be released from escrow to the applicable legal representative 
unless the TSX Venture Exchange objects. 
 
Warrants 
 
As of September 30, 2006, the following transferable common share purchase warrants were outstanding: 
 
(a) 1,333,334 warrants to purchase up to 1,333,334 common shares at a price of $0.50 per share, 

exercisable on or before June 15, 2007, issued as part of a brokered private placement of 2,222,223 units 
issued at a price of $0.45 per unit;   

 
(b) 5,482,667 warrants to purchase up to 5,482,667 common shares at a price of $0.20 per share, 

exercisable on or before January 24, 2008, issued as part of a non-brokered private placement of 
5,482,667 units issued at a price of $0.15 per unit; 
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(c) 5,585,999 warrants to purchase up to 5,585,999 common shares at a price of $0.30 per share, 

exercisable on or before May 18, 2008, issued as part of a brokered and non-brokered private placement 
of 6,385,999 units at a price of $0.225 per unit; and 

 
(d) 800,000 warrants to purchase up to 800,000 common shares at a price of $0.30 per share, exercisable on 

or before June 8, 2008, issued as part of a brokered and non-brokered private placement of 6,385,999 
units at a price of $0.225 per unit. 

 
As of December 29, 2006, our directors and officers, as a group (4 persons), held warrants to purchase 100,000 
shares of our common stock. 
 
There are no assurances that the option or warrants described above will be exercised in whole or in part. 
 
ITEM 7. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
As of the date of this report, there are no persons known to us that have direct or indirect beneficial ownership 
of, control or direction over, or a combination of direct or indirect beneficial ownership of and control or 
direction over, voting securities that will constitute more than 10% of any class of such securities except for 
Robert Lipsett, our former President and Chief Executive Officer, who holds 5,839,501 shares, being 15.99% of 
the shares outstanding.  
 
The following table sets forth the common share ownership of each person known by us to be the beneficial 
owner of five percent or more of our common shares.  Each person has sole voting and investment power with 
respect to the shares of common stock shown, and all ownership is of record and beneficial. 
 

Name of Shareholder Number of Shares Position % of Class 

Robert Lipsett (1) 5,839,501 Former President, CEO and 
Director 

15.99% 

Richard Genovese 2,801,667 5% shareholder 7.67% 

(1) Robert Lipsett resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer on December 20, 2006.   
 
All of our shares, both issued and unissued, are common shares of the same class and rank equally as to 
dividends, voting powers and participation of powers.  Accordingly, there are no special voting powers held by 
our major shareholders. 
 
As of the date of this registration statement, the aggregate number of shares of common stock beneficially 
owned, directly or indirectly, by our directors and senior officers as a group is 1,985,000 common shares, 
representing 5.44% of our total issued and outstanding common shares.  “Beneficial ownership” means sole or 
shared power to vote or direct the voting of the common shares, or the sole or shared power to dispose, or direct 
a disposition, of the common shares.  More than one person may be deemed to have beneficial ownership of the 
same securities. 
 
Change of Control 
 
As of the date of this Form 20-F Annual Report, there are no arrangements known to us which may at a 
subsequent date result in a change of control. 
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Related Party Transactions 
 
Other than as disclosed herein, our officers, directors and principal shareholders, or any of our associates or 
affiliates, have not participated in and have no other interest, direct or indirect, in any material transactions in 
which we have participated, or in any proposed transaction which has materially affected or will materially 
affect our company during the year ended June 30, 2006.  
 
Pursuant to an agreement dated as of the 11th of May, 2004, with KMD, we were granted the KMD Option to 
purchase a 100% interest in the Diamond Exploration Property.  KMD is a company wholly-owned by Felix 
Kaminsky who was appointed as our exploration manager and subsequently resigned effective December 20th, 
2006. 
 
We were organized to acquire and exploit the diamond property interests.  Incidental to such acquisition two of 
our directors advanced loans totaling $71,620, which loans were repaid without interest during January 2005.  
 
During the year ended June 30, 2006, we incurred professional, management and consulting services rendered 
by certain directors and an officer in the amount of $96,500 (2005: $114,000).  We also incurred $52,614 (2005: 
$33,632) in deferred mineral property expenditures to a company controlled by an officer and director. 
 
These transactions were entered into in the normal course of business and are measured at the exchange amount. 
 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2006, include $8,932 (2005: $4,328) owing to a company 
with a common director. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2006, 2,050,000 units were issued to certain directors and officers and a 
company controlled by an officer for total proceeds of $423,000. 
 
There are no additional interests of management in transactions involving our company except for those stated 
in the Notes to the Financial Statements.  
 
Indebtedness of Directors, Officers, Promoters and Other Management  

 
During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006, 2005, 2004, none of the following were indebted to us: 
 
(a) enterprises that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or 

are under common control with, the company; 
 
(b) associates; 
 
(c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the company that gives 

them significant influence over the company, and close members of any such individuals' family; 
 
(d) key management personnel and close members of such individuals' families; or 
 
(e) enterprises in which a substantial interest in the voting power is owned, directly or indirectly, by any 

person described in (c) or (d) or over which such a person is able to exercise significant influence. 
 
Interests of Experts and Counsel 
 
Not applicable 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Statements and Other Financial Information 
 
See Item 17. 
 
Legal Proceedings 
 
No material legal proceedings to which we are a party are pending nor are any known to be contemplated and 
we know of no legal proceedings pending or threatened, or judgments entered against, any of our officers or 
directors in their capacities as such.  
 
Dividends 
 
No dividend has been paid on our common shares since inception, and none is contemplated in the foreseeable 
future. 
 
Significant Changes 
 
There have been no significant changes since the date of our annual financial statements or since the date of our 
most recent interim financial statements.  
 
ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LISTING 
 
Listing Details 
 
Our shares began trading on the TSX Venture Exchange under the symbol “RLD” on January 7, 2005.  The 
following table discloses the annual high and low sales prices in Canadian dollars for our common shares for the 
most recent financial year and from our date of listing on January 7, 2005 to our fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, 
as traded on the TSX Venture Exchange: 
 

Year High Low 
2006 0.35 0.26 
2005 0.45 0.18 

 
The following table discloses the high and low sales prices in Canadian dollars for our common shares for each 
quarterly period since we commended trading on the TSX Venture Exchange on January 18, 2005: 
 

Quarter Ended High Low 
June 30, 2006 0.32 0.18 
March 30, 2006 0.42 0.20 
December 31, 2005 0.38 0.17 
September 30, 2005 0.45 0.30 
June 30, 2005 0.75 0.40 
March 31, 2005 0.37 0.54 
 
The following table discloses the monthly high and low sales prices in Canadian dollars for our common shares 
for the most recent six months as traded on the TSX Venture Exchange: 
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Month High Low 

November 2006 0.14 0.095 
October 2006 0.15 0.10 
September 2006 0.19 0.10 
August 2006 0.19 0.13 
July 2006 0.19 0.14 
June 2006 0.25 0.18 

 
The source for the above information is Canada Stockwatch.  The quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without 
retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not represent actual transactions. 
 
Holders 
 
As of December 29, 2006, there were approximately 472 registered and non-registered holders of record of our 
common shares.  Approximately 30 registered and non-registered holders of record are resident in the United 
States.   
 
Markets 
 
Our common shares are listed on the TSX Venture Exchange under the trading symbol “RLD”.  There are 
currently no restrictions on the transferability of these shares under Canadian securities laws.   
 
As a foreign private issuer, we will not be subject to the reporting obligations of the proxy rules of the Section 
14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or the insider short-swing profit rules of Section 16 of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. 
 
Selling Shareholders 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Dilution 
 
Not applicable 
 
Expenses of the Issue 
 
Not applicable 
 
ITEM 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Share Capital 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Memorandum and Articles of Incorporation 
 
Our Articles are incorporated by reference to the information in our registration statement on Form 20-F filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, in Washington, D.C. on April 4, 2004, to which our 
Memorandum and Articles were filed as exhibits.   
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On March 29, 2004, the Company Act (British Columbia) (the “Corporation Act”) was replaced by the Business 
Corporations Act (British Columbia) (the “BCBCA”).  Accordingly, we are now subject to the BCBCA and are 
no longer governed by the Company Act.  There are a number of differences under the BCBCA, which 
differences are designed to provide greater flexibility and efficiency for British Columbia companies.   
 
Under the BCBCA, every company incorporated under the Company Act must complete a mandatory transition 
rollover under the BCBCA to substitute a Notice of Articles for its Memorandum within two years of March 29, 
2004.  The only information contained in the Notice of Articles is the authorized share structure of the company, 
the name of the company, the address of the registered and records office of the company, and the names and 
addresses of the directors of the company.  A copy of the Transition Application and Notice of Articles as filed 
with the Registrar of Companies for British Columbia is attached to this Form 20-F as Exhibit 1.2. 
 
As a pre-existing Corporation under the Corporation Act, we are subject to provisions contained in the BCBCA 
known as the “Pre-Existing Corporation Provisions”.  The Pre-Existing Corporation Provisions are statutory 
provisions intended to preserve certain provisions of the Company Act to companies incorporated under the 
Company Act.  Under the BCBCA, we have the option to replace the Pre-Existing Corporation Provisions with 
a new form of Articles to take advantage of the benefits of the BCBCA, provided the shareholders approve the 
change.  
 
As a public company the only significant provision of the Pre-Existing Corporation Provisions that would apply 
to us is the requirement under the Company Act that three-quarters of the votes cast at a general meeting must 
vote in favour of a proposed special resolution in order for the resolution to be passed.  Under the BCBCA, the 
level of approval for special resolutions is reduced to two-thirds of the votes cast at a general meeting, which is 
consistent with the corporate statutes in other Canadian jurisdictions.  Management considers the two-thirds 
approval threshold to be appropriate for fundamental changes requiring approval by special resolution.  
 
Accordingly, at our annual meeting held on February 8, 2006, our shareholders approved a special resolution to 
alter the Notice of Articles to remove the application of the Pre-Existing Corporation Provisions.  A copy of the 
Notice of Alteration is attached to this Form 20-F as Exhibit 1.3.   
 
In addition to deleting the Pre-Existing Corporation Provisions, our Board of Directors were also of the view 
that it would be in our best interest to adopt a new set of Articles (the “New Articles”) to replace our Articles 
(the “Old Articles”).  The New Articles reflect the flexibility and efficiency permitted under the BCBCA, while 
maintaining a significant portion of the existing governing provisions.  As a result, most of the changes in the 
New Articles are minor in nature, and are not substantive changes.  A copy of the New Articles are attached to 
this Form 20-F as Exhibit 1.4. 
 
Material Contracts 
 
There are no material contracts except as discussed in this registration statement.  The following material 
contracts and all engineering or geological reports referred to in this registration statement may be inspected at 
our office Suite 305 - 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6C 2T5, during normal business 
hours.  
 

Exhibit No. Description 

4.1 Option agreement with Russell Renner, James Bond and Rudolph Wahl dated as of the 18th of 
March, 2004; 

4.2 Option agreement with John E. Ternowesky, Eugene Belisle and Noel Belisle dated as of the 19th 
of March, 2004; 

4.3 Option Agreement with James Bond and Russell Renner dated as of the 18th of March, 2004; 
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4.4 Option Agreement with William Maurice Michano, John Grant Michano dated as of the 17th of 

March, 2004; 

4.5 Option Agreement with KM Diamond Exploration Ltd. dated as of the 11th of May, 2004; 

4.6 Joint Exploration Agreement with Phoenix Matachewan Mines Inc. dated as of July 1, 2004; 

4.10 Escrow Agreement among Pacific Corporate Trust Company, Ripple Lake Minerals Inc., Robert 
Lipsett, Christopher Pollard, George Cavey, Timothy Crowhurst, Bud Kanke, Stephen Stares, 
Gregory Hryhorchuk and Gordon Smith dated the 16th of June, 2004. 

4.11 Private Placement Agreement with Canaccord Capital Corporation dated June 13, 2005. 

4.12 Option Agreement with Nuinsco Resources Limited dated June 22nd, 2005 

4.13 Option Agreement with Rudolf Wahl and Deric Ewen dated April 25th, 2005 

4.14 Option Agreement with Rudolf Wahl, Russel Renner and James Bond dated April 25th, 2005 
 
Exchange Controls 
 
There are no governmental laws, decrees, regulations or other legislation, including foreign exchange controls, 
in Canada which may affect the export or import of capital or that may affect the remittance of dividends, 
interest or other payments to non-resident holders of our securities.  Any such remittances to United States 
residents, however, are subject to a withholding tax pursuant to the Canada – U.S. Income tax Convention 
(1980) (the “Treaty”), as amended. 
 
There is no limitation imposed by Canadian law or by our articles or other charter documents on the right of a 
non-resident to hold or vote common shares or preference shares with voting rights (the “Voting Shares”), other 
than as provided in the Investment Canada Act (the “ICA”).  The ICA requires a non-Canadian making an 
investment which would result in the acquisition of control of a Canadian business (i.e. the gross value of the 
assets of which exceed a certain monetary threshold) or an investment to establish a new Canadian business, to 
identify, notify, or file an application for review with the Investment Review Division of Industry Canada 
(“IRD”). 
 
The notification procedure involves a brief statement of information about the investment on a prescribed form 
which is required to be filed with the IRD by the investor at any time up to 30 days following implementation of 
the investment.  It is intended that investments requiring only notification will proceed without government 
intervention unless the investment is in a specific type of business activity related to Canada’s cultural heritage 
and national identity. 
 
If an investment is reviewable under the ICA, an application for review in the form prescribed is normally 
required to be filed with the IRD prior to the investment taking place and the investment may not be 
implemented until the review has been completed and the Minister of Industry (“Minister”) (the Minister 
responsible for Investment Canada) is satisfied that the investment is likely to be of net benefit to Canada.  The 
Minister has up to 75 days to make this determination.  If the Minister is not satisfied that the investment is 
likely to be of net benefit to Canada, the non-Canadian must not implement the investment or, if the investment 
has been implemented, may be required to divest himself of control of the business that is the subject of the 
investment. 
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Taxation 
 
Canadian Income Tax Consequences 
 
The following summary discusses only the Canadian federal income tax considerations generally applicable to a 
holder (a "Holder") of one or more of our common shares who, for the purposes of the Income Tax Act (Canada) 
(the "Tax Act") is a non-resident of Canada who holds common shares as capital property.  The summary deals 
with the provisions of the Tax Act in force on February 28, 2005.  It discusses all material matters; but might not 
discuss all the tax consequences that may be relevant to particular holders in light of their circumstances or to 
holders subject to special rules. Holders and prospective holders are urged to consult with their own tax advisers 
with respect to their particular circumstances. 
 
Dividends 
 
A Holder will be subject to Canadian withholding tax ("Part XIII Tax") equal to 25%, or such lower rate as may 
be available under an applicable tax treaty, of the gross amount of any dividend paid or deemed to be paid on 
common shares. Under the Canada-U.S. Income Tax Convention (1980) as amended by the Protocols signed on 
6/14/1983, 3/28/1984, 3/17/1995, and 7/29/1997 (the "Treaty"), the rate of Part XIII Tax applicable to a 
dividend on common shares paid to a Holder who is a resident of the United States and who is the beneficial 
owner of the dividend, is 5%.  If the Holder is a company that owns at least 10% of the voting stock of the 
company paying the dividend, and, in all other cases, the tax rate is 15% of the gross amount of the dividend. 
The company will be required to withhold the applicable amount of Part XIII Tax from each dividend so paid 
and remit the withheld amount directly to the Receiver General for Canada for the account of the Holder. 
 
Disposition of Common Shares 
 
A Holder who disposes of a common share, including by deemed disposition on death, will not normally be 
subject to Canadian tax on any capital gain (or capital loss) thereby realized unless the common share 
constituted "taxable Canadian property" as defined by the Tax Act.  Generally, a common share of a public 
corporation will not constitute taxable Canadian property of a Holder if the share is listed on a prescribed stock 
exchange unless the Holder or persons with whom the Holder did not deal at arm's length alone or together held 
or held options to acquire, at any time within the five years preceding the disposition, 25% or more of the shares 
of any class of the capital stock of the company. The TSX Venture Exchange is a prescribed stock exchange 
under the Tax Act.  A Holder who is a resident of the United States and realizes a capital gain on a disposition of 
a common share that was taxable Canadian property will nevertheless, by virtue of the Treaty, generally be 
exempt from Canadian tax thereon unless (a) more than 50% of the value of the common shares is derived from, 
or from an interest in, Canadian real estate, including Canadian mineral resource properties, (b) the common 
share formed part of the business property of a permanent establishment that the Holder has or had in Canada 
within the 12 month period preceding the disposition, or (c) the Holder is an individual who (i) was a resident of 
Canada at any time during the 10 years immediately preceding the disposition, and for a total of 120 months 
during any period of 20 consecutive years, preceding the disposition, and (ii) owned the common share when he 
ceased to be resident in Canada. 
 
A Holder who is subject to Canadian tax in respect of a capital gain realized on a disposition of a common share 
must include three quarters of the capital gain (taxable capital gain) in computing the Holder's taxable income 
earned in Canada. The Holder may, subject to certain limitations, deduct three-quarters of any capital loss 
(allowable capital loss) arising on a disposition of taxable Canadian property from taxable capital gains realized 
in the year of disposition in respect to taxable Canadian property and, to the extent not so deductible, from such 
taxable capital gains realized in any of the three preceding years or any subsequent year. 
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United States Federal Income Taxation Considerations 
 
For federal income tax purposes, an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States or a domestic 
corporation ("U.S. Taxpayer") will recognize a gain or loss on the sale of the company's common shares equal to 
the difference between the proceeds from such sale and the adjusted tax basis of the common shares. The gain or 
loss will be a capital gain or capital loss if the company's common shares are a capital asset in U.S. Taxpayer's 
hands. 
 
For federal income tax purposes, a U.S. Taxpayer will be required to include in gross income dividends received 
on the company's common shares.  A U.S. Taxpayer who pays Canadian tax on a dividend on common shares 
will be entitled, subject to certain limitations, to a credit (or alternatively, a deduction) against federal income 
tax liability.  A domestic corporation that owns at least 10% of the voting shares should consult its tax advisor as 
to applicability of the deemed paid foreign tax credit with respect to dividends paid on the company's common 
shares. 
 
Under a number of circumstances, United States Investor acquiring shares of the company may be required to 
file an information return with the Internal Revenue Service Center where they are required to file their tax 
returns with a duplicate copy to the Internal Revenue Service Center, Philadelphia, PA 19255.  In particular, any 
United States Investor who becomes the owner, directly or indirectly, of 10% or more of the shares of the 
company will be required to file such a return.  Other filing requirements may apply, and United States Investors 
should consult their own tax advisors concerning these requirements. 
 
The US Internal Revenue Code provides special anti-deferral rules regarding certain distributions received by 
US persons with respect to, and sales and other dispositions (including pledges) of stock of, a passive foreign 
investment company.  A foreign corporation, such as the company, will be treated as a passive foreign 
investment company if 75% or more of its gross income is passive income for a taxable year or if the average 
percentage of its assets (by value) that produce, or are held for the production of, passive income is at least 50% 
for a taxable year. We believe that we were not a passive foreign investment company for the taxable year ended 
June 30, 2006 and, furthermore, expect to conduct our affairs in such a manner so that we will not meet the 
criteria to be considered passive foreign investment company in the foreseeable future. 
 
The tax consequences to any particular holder of common stock will vary according to the status of that holder 
as an individual, trust, corporation or member of a partnership, the jurisdiction in which that holder is subject to 
taxation, the place where that holder is resident and, generally, according to that holders particular 
circumstances. This summary is applicable only to holders who are resident in the United States, have never 
been resident in Canada, deal at arm’s length with us, hold their common stock as capital property and who will 
not use or hold the common stock in carrying on business in Canada. Special rules, which are not discussed in 
this summary, may apply to a United States holder that is an issuer that carries on business in Canada and 
elsewhere.  
 
This summary is based upon the “provisions” of the Income Tax Act of Canada and the regulations issued 
thereunder (collectively, the “Tax Act” or “ITA”) and the Canada-United States Tax Convention (the “Tax 
Convention”) as at the date of the registration statement and the current administrative practices of Canada 
Customs and Revenue Agency. This summary does not take into account provincial income tax consequences.  
 
We urge each holder to consult his own tax advisor with respect to the income tax consequences applicable to 
him in his own particular circumstances. 
 
Dividends and Paying Agents 
 
Not applicable 
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Statement by Experts 
 
Our auditors for our financial statements for each of the preceding three years was Amisano Hanson, Chartered 
Accountants, of #604, 750 West Pender Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2T7, Canada.  Their audit 
report for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are included with the related financial statements 
in this Form 20-F Annual Report statement with their consent. 
 
Documents on Display 
 
All material documents referred to herein have been filed as exhibits to this Form 20-F or at our office at Suite 
305 - 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6C 2T5 and our telephone number is (604) 682-
8789 
 
We filed a registration statement on Form 20-F with the Securities and Exchange Commission in Washington, 
D.C. (Registration No. 000-30084) on April 4. 2004.  The Registration Statement contains exhibits and 
schedules.  Any statement in this annual report about any of our contracts or other documents is not necessarily 
complete.  If the contract or document is filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement, the contract or 
document is deemed to modify the description contained in this annual report.  The exhibits must be reviewed 
by themselves for a complete description of the contract or documents. 
 
Our registration statements may be inspected and copied, including exhibits and schedules, and the reports and 
other information as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in accordance with the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 at the public reference facilities maintained by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C., 20549.  Copies of such material may also be obtained from the Public 
Reference Section of the Securities and Exchange Commission at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C., 20549, 
at prescribed rates. Information may be obtained regarding the Washington D.C. Public Reference Room by 
calling the Securities and Exchange Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330 or by contacting the Securities and 
Exchange Commission over the Internet at its website at http://www.sec.gov. 
 
Subsidiary Information 
 
Not applicable 
 
ITEM 11.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 
 
We are a small business issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Rule 12b-2 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and therefore need not provide the information requested 
by this item. 
 
ITEM 12.  DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITY SECURITIES 
 
Not applicable. 
 

PART II 
 
ITEM 13.  DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES 
 
Not applicable. 
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ITEM 14.  MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HOLDERS AND USE 
OF PROCEEDS 

 
There have no material modifications to the rights of security holders since the adoption of new Articles on February 
8, 2006.   
 
ITEM 15.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
 
We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the our 
president, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our “disclosure controls and procedures” [as defined in 
the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)] as of the end of the period covered by this report.  Based upon that evaluation, our 
president concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to material 
information relating to our company required to be included in our periodic SEC filings, and that information is 
recorded, processed, summarized and reported as and when required. 
 
There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the 
possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even 
effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control 
objectives. 
 
There was no significant change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our most recently 
completed fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our 
internal control over financial reporting. Nor were there any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in our 
internal controls requiring corrective actions. 
 
Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting 
 
We are currently considered a non-accelerated filer pursuant to Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.  Therefore, we are 
not currently required to make statements regarding the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting 
under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. However, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer, recognize that, as a small business issuer, we will likely be required to comply with 
disclosure report requirements of Section 404 beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007. 
 
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting or in other factors that could significantly 
affect our internal control over financial reporting during 2006.  Our management, including our Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or internal controls 
and procedures will prevent all error and all fraud.  A control system can provide only reasonable, not absolute, 
assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, 
no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have 
been detected.  These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and 
that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake.  Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the 
individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control.  The 
design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, 
and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future 
conditions. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. 
 
ITEM 16A.  AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT 
 
We do not at this time have a financial expert on our Audit Committee (as defined in Item 16A of Form 20-F).  We 
are currently actively seeking a financial expert to join our audit committee.  Timothy Crowhurst, George Cavey and 
William Schmidt have the industry experience necessary to understand and analyze financial statements, as well as 
the understanding of internal controls and procedures necessary for financial reporting. 
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ITEM 16B. CODE OF ETHICS 
 
We have not adopted a Code of Ethics at this time.  We do not consider a Code of Ethics necessary due to the 
small size of our exploration activities and the small number of persons comprising our Board of Directors and 
management. 
 
ITEM 16C. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 
 
The following table lists the aggregate fees billed for each of the last two fiscal years for professional services 
rendered by the principal accountant for the audit of our annual financial statements or services that are 
normally provided by the accountant in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for 
those fiscal years. 
 

 Year ended  
June 30, 2006 

Cdn $ 

Year Ended  
June 30, 2005 

Cdn $ 
Audit fees 29,900 21,000 
Audit related fees Nil Nil 
Tax fees Nil Nil 
All other fees Nil 2,500 
Total: 29,900 23,500 

 
ITEM 16D. EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Item 16E. PURCHASERS OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED 

PURCHASERS 
 
We did not repurchase any of our shares in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. 
 

PART III 
 
ITEM 17. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Our audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2006 immediately follow:  
 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated October 18, 2006 F-3 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

Balance Sheet for the years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005 F-4 

Statement of Operations and Deficit for the years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005 F-5 

Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005 F-6 

Statement of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005 F-7 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005 F-8 – F-23 
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ITEM 18. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
We elected to provide financial statements pursuant to Item 17. 
 
ITEM 19. EXHIBITS 
 

Exhibit #  Document Description  

1.1 (1) Articles of Organization; 

1.2 Transition Application and Notice of Articles 

1.3 Notice of Articles to remove Pre-Existing Corporate Provisions 

1.4 (4) New Articles effective February 8, 2006 

4.1 (1) Option agreement with Russell Renner, James Bond and Rudolph Wahl dated as of the 18th of March, 
2004; 

4.2 (1) Option agreement with John E. Ternowesky, Eugene Belisle and Noel Belisle dated as of the 19th of 
March, 2004; 

4.3 (1) Option Agreement with James Bond and Russell Renner dated as of the 18th of March, 2004; 

4.4 (1) Option Agreement with William Maurice Michano, John Grant Michano dated as of the 17th of March, 
2004; 

4.5 (1) Option Agreement with KM Diamond Exploration Ltd. dated as of the 11th of May, 2004; 

4.6 (1) Joint Exploration Agreement with Phoenix Matachewan Mines Inc. dated as of July 1, 2004; 

4.10 (1) Escrow Agreement among Pacific Corporate Trust Company, Ripple Lake Minerals Inc., Robert 
Lipsett, Christopher Pollard, George Cavey, Timothy Crowhurst, Bud Kanke, Stephen Stares, Gregory 
Hryhorchuk and Gordon Smith dated the 16th of June, 2004. 

4.11 (2) Private Placement Agreement with Canaccord Capital Corporation dated June 13, 2005. 

4.12 (3) Option Agreement with Nuinsco Resources Limited dated June 22nd, 2005 

4.13 (3) Option Agreement with Rudolf Wahl and Deric Ewen dated April 25th, 2005 

4.14 (3) Option Agreement with Rudolf Wahl, Russel Renner and James Bond dated April 25th, 2005 

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant To Rule 13a-14 Or 15d-14 of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934,as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant To Rule 13a-14 Or 15d-14 of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934,as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.  Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.  Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

 
(1) Incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form 20-F filed on April 3, 2005. 
 
(2) Incorporated by reference from our Amendment No. 1 to our Registration Statement on Form 20-F filed on 

July 14, 2005. 
 

(3) Incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form 20-F filed on December 30, 2005. 
 
(4) Incorporated by reference from our Form 6-K filed on February 27, 2006.  
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SIGNATURES 
 
 
The registrant hereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 20-F and that it has duly 
caused and authorized the undersigned to sign this annual report on its behalf. 
 
 
Dated this 29th day of December, 2006. 
 
 RIPPLE LAKE DIAMONDS INC.  
 
 
 
 BY: /s/ Timothy Crowhurst  
 Timothy Crowhurst, President and Director 
 



 

 

RIPPLE LAKE DIAMONDS INC. 

(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 AND 2005 

AND FOR THE PERIOD FROM FEBRUARY 6, 2004 (DATE OF INCEPTION) TO 
JUNE 30, 2004 

(Stated in Canadian dollars) 
 
 

 PAGE 

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT 1 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 2 

BALANCE SHEETS 3 

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 4 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 5 

STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 6 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 7 - 22 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT 
 
These annual financial statements are the responsibility of management.  In the preparation of these 
financial statements, estimates are sometimes necessary to make a determination of the carrying values 
for certain assets or liabilities.  The critical accounting policies and estimates are disclosed in the annual 
financial statements.  Management believes such estimates have been based on careful judgments and 
have been properly reflected in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
The Company maintains a system of internal and administrative controls to provide reasonable assurance 
that the Company’s assets are safeguarded and to facilitate the preparation of relevant and timely 
information.   
 
The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills 
its responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control.  The Audit Committee is comprised of 
three directors, who meet at least quarterly with management and annually with the external auditors to 
review accounting, auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters.   
 
 
“Robert Lipsett” 
Robert Lipsett 
President 
 
 
“Foo Chan” 
Foo Chan 
Chief Financial Officer 
 
October 18, 2006 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
 
 
To The shareholders of 
 Ripple Lake Diamonds Inc. 
 
We have audited the balance sheets of Ripple Lake Diamonds Inc. as at June 30, 2006 and 2005 and the statements 
of operations, cash flows and shareholders’ equity for the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 and for the periods 
from February 6, 2004 (Date of Inception) to June 30, 2004 and from February 6, 2004 (Date of Inception) to 
June 30, 2006.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.  Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of 
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States of America).  Those standards require that we plan 
and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
 
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Company as at June 30, 2006 and 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years ended 
June 30, 2006 and 2005 and for the periods from February 6, 2004 (Date of Inception) to June 30, 2004 and from 
February 6, 2004 (Date of Inception) to June 30, 2006 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles.   
 
Vancouver, Canada “AMISANO HANSON” 
October 18, 2006 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 

COMMENTS BY AUDITOR FOR U.S. READERS ON CANADA - U.S. REPORTING 
DIFFERENCE 

 
In the United States of America, reporting standards for auditors require the addition of an explanatory paragraph 
(following the opinion paragraph) when there is substantial doubt about a company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable 
to a going concern which assumes the realization of assets and discharge of liabilities in the normal course of 
business. As discussed in Note 1 of the accompanying financial statements, the Company is in the process of 
exploring its mineral properties and has not yet determined whether the properties contain ore reserves that are 
economically recoverable which raises substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 
The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this 
uncertainty. 
 
Our report to the shareholders dated October 18, 2006 is expressed in accordance with Canadian reporting standards 
which do not permit a reference to such uncertainty in the auditors' report when the uncertainty is adequately 
disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
Vancouver, Canada “AMISANO HANSON” 
October 18, 2006 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 



 

 

RIPPLE LAKE DIAMONDS INC. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

 
BALANCE SHEETS 

June 30, 2006 and  2005 
(Stated in Canadian dollars) 

 
 
 2006 2005 
 $ $ 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS  

Cash (Note 9)   373,721   262,734   
Amount receivable   6,401   105,673   
Prepaids   7,500   20,000   

 
     387,622   388,407   

MINERAL EXPLORATION PROPERTIES (Notes 3 and 8)  4,881,420   3,185,400 

EQUIPMENT (Note 4)   -   1,273   
 
    5,269,042   3,575,080   
 
 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES    

Accounts payables and accrued liabilities (Note 8)  47,962   482,778   
 
 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
SHARE CAPITAL (Note 5) 

Authorized: unlimited common shares without par value 
Issued and outstanding:  36,075,682 (2005 - 23,289,550) common shares  5,833,307   3,420,643   

CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS   794,750   611,000   

DEFICIT accumulated during the exploration stage  (1,406,977)   (939,341)   
 
    5,221,080   3,092,302   
 
    5,269,042   3,575,080   
 
Nature and Continuance of Operations (Note 1) 
Commitments and Subsequent Events (Notes 3, 5 and 7) 

APPROVED BY THE DIRECTORS: 
 
DIRECTOR:        "Robert Lipsett" 
                                Robert Lipsett 
 
DIRECTOR:        "Edward G. Williams" 
                                Edward G. Williams 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 (The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements) 
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RIPPLE LAKE DIAMONDS INC. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

 
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  

For the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 and 
For the period from February 6, 2004 (Date of Inception) to June 30, 2004 and 

For the period from February 6, 2004 (Date of Inception) to June 30, 2006 
(Stated in Canadian dollars) 

 
 

 Cumulative   From inception, 
 from inception,   February 6, 2004 
 February 6, 2004 to Year ended June 30, to June 30, 
 June 30, 2006 2006 2005 2004 
 $ $ $ $ 
     
REVENUE     
 Interest income  4,246  1,990  2,256  - 
     
EXPENSES     
 Bank charges  1,551  418  916  217 
 Depreciation  225  -  225  - 
 Entertainment  5,054  1,632  3,422  - 
 Filing fees  74,759  29,475  45,284  - 
 Interest  1,631  1,192  439  - 
 Management fees (Note 8)  186,500  84,500  102,000  - 
 Office  34,790  27,104  7,580  106 
 Printing  3,672  1,408  2,264  - 
 Professional fees (Note 8)  207,432  119,839  69,615  17,978 
 Property investigation  15,911  15,911  -  - 
 Public and shareholder relations  194,336  87,118  107,218  - 
 Rent  39,500  21,500  18,000  - 
 Stock-based compensation  794,750  183,750  611,000  - 
 Transfer agent  23,454  12,967  10,487  - 
 Travel  11,822  3,976  7,846  - 
     
  1,595,387  590,790  986,296  18,301 
     
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES  (1,591,141)  (588,800)  (984,040)  (18,301) 
     
FUTURE INCOME TAX RECOVERY  184,164  121,164  63,000  - 
     
NET LOSS FOR THE PERIOD  (1,406,977)  (467,636)  (921,040)  (18,301) 
     
     
NET LOSS PER SHARE: basic and diluted   (0.02)  (0.05)  (0.02) 
     
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF 
SHARES OUTSTANDING 

 
 - 

 
 26,783,813 

 
 18,539,297 

 
 965,518 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements) 
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RIPPLE LAKE DIAMONDS INC. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 and  
For the period from February 6, 2004 (Date of Inception) to June 30, 2004 and 

For the period from February 6, 2004 (Date of Inception) to June 30, 2006 
(Stated in Canadian dollars) 

 
 Cumulative   From inception, 
 from inception,   February 6, 2004 
 February 4, 2004 to Year ended June 30, to June 30, 
 June 30, 2006 2006 2005 2004 
 $ $ $ $ 
     
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
 Net loss for the period  (1,406,977)  (467,636)  (921,040)  (18,301) 
 Depreciation  225  -  225  - 
 Stock-based compensation  794,750  183,750  611,000  - 
 Future income tax recovery  (184,164)  (121,164)  (63,000)  - 
 Loss on disposal of equipment  313  313  -  - 
     
CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL     
 Amount receivable  (6,401)  99,272  (72,886)  (32,787) 
 Prepaids  (7,500)  (7,500)  -  - 
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  47,962  (37,460)  28,228  16,487 
     
  (761,792)  (350,425)  (417,473)  (34,601) 
     
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
 Prepaids  -  20,000  (20,000)  - 
 Advances from related parties  -  -  (71,620)  71,620 
 Issuance of shares, net of issue of costs  5,777,371  2,455,728  2,594,043  727,600 
     
  5,777,371  2,475,728  2,502,423  799,220 
     
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
 Proceed on disposal of equipment  960  960  -  - 
 Purchase of equipment  (1,498)  -  (1,498)  - 
 Advances for future exploration costs  -  -  297,500  (297,500) 
 Mineral exploration properties  (4,641,320)  (2,015,276)  (2,357,871)  (227,466) 
     
  (4,641,858)  (2,014,316)  (2,061,869)  (524,966) 
     
INCREASE IN CASH  373,721  110,987  23,081  239,653 
     
CASH, beginning of period  -  262,734  239,653  - 
     
CASH, end of period  373,721  373,721  262,734  239,653 
     
Non-cash investing and financing transactions not included 
in cash flows: 

    

 Issuance of common shares for mineral property rights  240,100  78,100  162,000  - 
 Issuance of common shares to agent relating to initial 
  public offering 

 
 80,000 

 
 - 

 
 80,000 

 
 - 

     
Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information     
Cash paid for:     
 Interest  1,192  1,192  -  - 
 Income taxes  -  -  -  - 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 

(The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements) 
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RIPPLE LAKE DIAMONDS INC. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

 
STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

For the period February 6, 2004 (Date of Inception) to June 30, 2006 
(Stated in Canadian dollars) 

 
 
 

 Common Stock Contributed Accumulated 
 Shares Amount Surplus Deficit Total 
  $ $ $ $ 
 
Balance, February 6, 2004  -  -  -   -  -  
Issued for cash pursuant to: 

Founder's share     1  1  -  -  1  
Private Placement (seed shares) (at $0.15)  4,783,993  717,599  -  -  717,599  
Escrow shares (at $0.001)  10,000,000  10,000  -  -  10,000  

Net loss   -  -  -   (18,301)  (18,301)  
 
Balance, June 30, 2004  14,783,994  727,600  -  (18,301)  709,299  

 
Issued for cash pursuant to:  

Private Placement (seed shares) (at $0.15 per share)  1,678,333  251,750  -  -  251,750  
Price adjustment to 950,000 escrow shares (from 

$0.001 to $0.05)  -  46,550  -  -  46,550  
Initial public offering (at $0.40 per share, net of share 

issue costs of $305,457)  4,000,000  1,294,543  -  -  1,294,543  
Private placement (at $0.45 per share, net of share 

issue costs of $78,800)  2,222,223  921,200  -  -  921,200  
Future income taxes relating to renounced exploration 

expenditures applicable to flow-through shares  -  (63,000)  -  -  (63,000)  
Issued for agent's commission (at $0.40 per share)   200,000  80,000  -  -  80,000  
Issued for mineral property rights at $0.40 per share - 

Note 3  405,000  162,000  -  -  162,000  
Stock based compensation  -  -  611,000  -  611,000  
Net loss   -  -  -   (921,040)  (921,040)  
 
Balance, June 30, 2005  23,289,550  3,420,643  611,000  (939,341)  3,092,302  
 
Issued for cash pursuant to:  

Private Placement (at $0.45 per share)  622,466  280,110  -  -  280,110  
Private Placement (at $0.15 per share)  5,482,667  822,400  -  -  822,400  
Private Placement (at 0.225 per share, net of share 

issue costs of $83,632)  6,385,999  1,353,218  -  -  1,353,218  
Future income taxes relating to renounced exploration 

expenditures applicable to flow-through shares  -  (121,164)  -  -  (121,164)  
Issued for mineral property rights at $0.40 per share - 

Note 3  105,000  42,000  -  -  42,000  
Issued for mineral property rights at $0.19 per share - 

Note 3  190,000  36,100  -  -  36,100  
Stock based compensation  -  -  183,750  -  183,750  
Net Loss  -  -  -  (467,636)  (467,636)  
 
Balance, June 30, 2006  36,075,682  5,833,307  794,750  (1,406,977)  5,221,080 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements) 
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RIPPLE LAKE DIAMONDS INC. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 
(Stated in Canadian dollars) 

 

- 7 - 

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN    

Ripple Lake Diamonds Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated on February 6, 2004 under the Business 
Corporations Act of British Columbia as TCH Minerals Inc. and changed its name to Ripple Lake Minerals 
Ltd. on May 13, 2004 and to Ripple Lake Diamonds Inc. on July 26, 2004.  The Company is an exploration 
stage junior mining company engaged in the identification, acquisition, evaluation and exploration of diamond 
properties in Ontario and Nunavut, Canada. The Company completed its initial public offering ("IPO") on 
January 6, 2005 and is listed for trading on the TSX Venture Exchange.  

The Company's mineral properties are without a known body of commercial ore.  The business of exploring for 
minerals and mining involves a high degree of risk.  Few properties that are explored are ultimately developed 
into producing mines.  Major expenses may be required to establish ore reserves, to develop metallurgical 
processes, to acquire construction and operating permits and to construct mining and processing facilities.  The 
amounts shown as mineral property costs represent acquisition, holding, and deferred exploration costs and do 
not necessarily represent present or future recoverable values.  The recoverability of the amounts shown for 
mineral property costs is dependent upon the Company obtaining the necessary financing to complete the 
exploration and development of the properties, the discovery of economically recoverable reserves, and future 
profitable operations.  There can be no assurance that such additional financing will be available on terms 
acceptable to the Company.   

Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties in which it has an interest in 
accordance with industry standards for the current state of exploration of such properties, these procedures do 
not guarantee the Company's title.  Property title may be subject to unregistered prior agreements and 
non-compliance with regulatory requirements.  

These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes that the Company 
will continue operations for the foreseeable future and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its 
liabilities in the normal course of business. 

At June 30, 2006 the Company had working capital of $339,660 which may not be sufficient to sustain 
operations over the next twelve months and expects to incur further losses in its business, all of which casts 
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  These financial statements do 
not include any adjustments to the recoverability or classification of recorded asset amounts or the 
classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going 
concern and therefore be required to realize on its assets and discharge its liabilities and commitments at 
amounts different from those reported in the financial statements.   

 



RIPPLE LAKE DIAMONDS INC. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 
(Stated in Canadian dollars) 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in 
Canada and, except as described in Note 9, conform in all material respects with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.   The financial statements have in management's opinion 
been properly prepared within the framework of the significant accounting policies summarized below:  

Exploration Stage Company 

The Company is an exploration stage company as defined in Securities and Exchange Commission Act Guide 
7. The Company is devoting its present efforts to exploring and developing its mineral properties and none of 
its planned principal operations have commenced. All losses accumulated since inception have been 
considered as part of the Company's exploration stage activities. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  These estimates are reviewed periodically and as 
adjustments become necessary, they are reported in operations in the period in which they became known.  
Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

Mineral Exploration Properties     
 
The Company defers the cost of acquiring, maintaining its interest, exploring and developing mineral 
properties until such time as the properties are placed into production, abandoned, sold or considered to be 
impaired in value.  Costs of producing properties will be amortized on a unit of production basis and costs of 
abandoned properties are written-off. Proceeds received on the sale of interests in mineral properties are 
credited to the carrying value of the mineral properties, with any excess included in operations. Write-downs 
due to impairment in value are charged to operations. 
 
The Company is in the process of exploring and developing its mineral properties and has not yet determined 
the amount of reserves, if any, that are available. Management reviews the carrying value of mineral properties 
on a periodic basis and will recognize impairment in value based upon current exploration results, the prospect 
of further work being carried out by the Company, the assessment of future profitability of production revenues 
from the property or from the sale of property. Amounts shown for properties represent costs incurred net of 
write-downs and recoveries and are not intended to represent present or future values. 

Reclamation Costs      

Reclamation activities are carried out to the extent practicable concurrently with property exploration activities 
and such costs are included in exploration costs during the period in which they are incurred.  When properties 
are abandoned, any remaining reclamation costs are estimated and included as exploration costs in the period 
the property is abandoned. 



RIPPLE LAKE DIAMONDS INC. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 
(Stated in Canadian dollars) 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Equipment and Depreciation 

Equipment is carried at cost and consist of a computer.  Depreciation is calculated under the declining balance 
basis over the estimated useful life of the asset at 30% per annum.  One-half of the rate is used in the year of 
addition and no depreciation is claimed in the year of disposal. 

Asset Retirement Obligations 

The fair value of obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets are recorded in the 
period the asset is put into use, with a corresponding increase to the carrying amount of the related asset.  The 
obligations recognized are statutory, contractual or legal obligations.  The liability is accreted over time for 
changes in the fair value of the liability through operations.  The costs capitalized to the related assets are 
amortized in a manner consistent with the depletion and depreciation of the related asset.  At June 30, 2006, 
there is no liability. 

Future Income Taxes   

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method.  Under this method, future 
income taxes are recorded for the temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and tax basis of 
the Company's assets and liabilities.  These future taxes are measured by the provisions of currently enacted 
tax laws.  Management believes that it is not sufficiently likely that the Company will generate sufficient 
taxable income to allow the realization of all of its future tax assets and therefore the Company has made an 
impairment allowance against these assets.  

Financial Instruments  

The financial instruments of the Company consist of cash, accounts payables and accrued liabilities.  The 
carrying value of the financial instruments approximate fair value due to their short term to maturity.  Unless 
otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest, currency 
or credit risk arising from these financial instruments.  

Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company has a stock-based compensation plan as disclosed in Note 5, whereby stock options are granted 
in accordance with the policies of regulatory authorities.  The fair value of all stock options are expensed over 
their vesting period with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus.  Upon exercise of stock options, the 
consideration paid by the option holder, together with the amount previously recognized in contributed surplus, 
is recorded as an increase to share capital. 

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option valuation model to calculate the fair value of stock options at the 
date of grant.  Option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the 
expected price volatility.  Changes in these assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate and, 
therefore, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of the 
Company’s stock options.   



RIPPLE LAKE DIAMONDS INC. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 
(Stated in Canadian dollars) 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Flow-Through Shares 

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants has issued guidance on the accounting treatment for 
Canadian flow-through shares through its Emerging Issues Committee Abstract (“EIC”) No. 146.  All flow-
through shares issued by the Company are accounted for in accordance with this Abstract.  Accordingly, upon 
renunciation of exploration expenditures to the shareholders, the Company reduces share capital and 
recognizes a future income tax liability for the amount of tax reduction renounced to the shareholders.  In 
instances where the Company has sufficient available tax loss carry forwards or other deductible temporary 
differences available to offset the renounced tax deduction and is more-likely-than-not able to utilize either 
these tax losses or other deductible temporary differences before expiry, the Company recognizes future tax 
assets, with a corresponding credit to operations, for an amount equal to the future income tax liability. 

Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share 

Basic loss per share is computed dividing the loss for the year by the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding during the year.  Diluted loss per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if 
potentially dilutive securities were exercised or converted to common stock. The dilutive effect of options and 
warrants is computed by application of the treasury stock method and the effect of convertible securities by the 
“if converted” method.  Fully diluted amounts are not presented when effects of the computations are anti-
dilutive due to the losses incurred.   

Diluted net loss per share reflects the potential dilution of securities that could result from the exercise of 
dilutive options and warrants.  As of June 30, 2006, the Company had 2,680,000 (2005: 1,700,000) stock 
options and 13,513,233 (2005: 1,733,334) warrants outstanding which have not been included in the 
calculation of diluted net loss per share because their effect would have been antidilutive.  Accordingly, there 
is no difference in the amounts presented for basic and diluted loss per share. 

 



RIPPLE LAKE DIAMONDS INC. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 
(Stated in Canadian dollars) 
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3. MINERAL EXPLORATION PROPERTIES 
    
 Cumulative from inception, 
 February 6, 2004 to  
 June 30, 2006 2006 2005  

TCH Diamond Project $ $ $ 
Balance, beginning of period  -   1,278,070   248,173  

Property acquisition and staking costs   866,269   555,687   163,177   
 
Exploration expenses 

Communication   16,000   -   16,000   
Data analysis   328,490   149,455   164,235   
Equipment rental   14,000   -   14,000   
Food and accommodation   22,500   -   22,500   
Geological   318,282   212,454   89,190   
Geophysics   218,445   192,220   -   
Ground magnetic   21,635   -   -   
Helicopter fees   64,579   -   64,579   
Lab fee   1,388   -   1,388   
Line cutting   21,470   -   -   
Management fee   32,000   -   32,000   
Mapping  36,122   36,122   -   
Mobilization and demobilization   24,000   16,000   8,000   
Sampling and processing   438,500   -   438,500   
Supplies   16,328   -   16,328   

 
     1,573,739   606,251   866,720   
 
Balance, end of period   2,440,008   2,440,008   1,278,070   
 
 
KMD Project $ $ $ 
Balance, beginning of period  -   1,907,330   20,000  

Property acquisition and staking costs   533,872   28,500   485,372   
 
Exploration expenses 

Assessment fee   3,768   -   3,768   
Camp   268,532   25,252   243,280   
Communication   3,981   -   3,981   
Data analysis   300,547   256,328   44,219   
Food and accommodation   26,872   -   26,872   
Geological   273,095   177,268   95,827   
Geophysics   220,092   34,207   185,885   
Helicopter fees   161,232   -   161,232   
Management fee   35,829   -   35,829   
Mapping   11,027   11,027   -   
Mobilization and demobilization   12,938   -   12,938   
Sampling and processing   581,160   -   581,160   
Supplies   8,467   1,500   6,967   

 
     1,907,540   505,582   1,401,958   
 
Balance, end of period   2,441,412   2,441,412   1,907,330   

 
Total 4,881,420 4,881,420 3,185,400  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 
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3.      MINERAL EXPLORATION PROPERTIES (Continued) 
 
Environmental Protection Practices 
The Company is subject to laws and regulations relating to environmental matters in all jurisdictions in which 
it operates, including provisions relating to property reclamation, discharge of hazardous material and other 
matters.  The Company may also be held liable should environmental problems be discovered that were caused 
by former owners and operators of its properties and properties in which it has previously had an interest.  The 
Company is not aware of any existing environmental problems related to any of its current or former properties 
that may result in material liability to the Company. 
 
TCH Diamond Project 
The Company has entered into five agreements dated in March 2004, April 2005 or June 2005, for options to 
earn a 100%  interest in certain mineral claims, representing 167 units or 2,672 hectares, located in the Walsh, 
Foxtrap Lake and Killala Townships in the Province of Ontario known as the TCH Diamond Project (the 
"Options").  As at June 30, 2006, the Company has made cash payments totalling $100,000 and has issued 
200,000 common shares under these Options. 
 
During the year the Company abandoned one of the option agreements consisting of 38 units. 
 
The future annual payments of cash and common shares required to be issued under these agreements are as 
follows: 
   Common 
 Cash    Shares 

    $ 

 Year ended June 30, 2007 58,000  105,000 
  2008  110,000   85,000 
  2009  30,000  20,000 
    198,000  210,000 
 
Subsequent to June 30, 2006, the Company, issued 40,000 common shares and made a $28,000 cash 
payments. 
 
The Company is also required to make all expenditures required to maintain the mineral claims in good 
standing and to pay the Optioners 2% of net smelter returns from the properties upon commercial production. 
 
In addition, during the year ended June 30, 2006, the Company has staked an additional 5,411 units or 
approximately 86,600 hectares in an area that is contiguous to the optioned properties for a cost of $449,087.  
These additional claims are 100% owned by the Company.  As at June 30, 2006 the Company has incurred 
staking costs of $697,857 and its interest in the TCH Diamond Project now totals approximately 143,300 
hectares.  
 
To maintain the above claims in good standing, the Company is required to spend a minimum of $400 per unit 
on assessment work during the first two years after staking and $400 per unit per year thereafter. 

 
KMD Project 
By an agreement dated May 11, 2004, the Company was granted an option to purchase an 80% interest in 
certain mineral claims, representing approximately 32,300 acres, located in the territories of Nunavut known as 
the KMD Project ("the Option").  As at June 30, 2006, management believes the Company has fulfilled all of 
the requirements of the option and may exercise the option by giving notice of exercise to the optionor and by 
concurrently issuing 200,000 common shares to the optionor at any time prior to December 31, 2007. 
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3.      MINERAL EXPLORATION PROPERTIES (Continued) 
 

KMD Project (Continued) 
The Optionor is entitled to a royalty equal to 3% of Gross Revenue from the sale of diamonds mined from the 
property.  The Company may, at any time within three years after the exercise of the Option, purchase 
one-third (1/3) of the 3% royalty for a purchase price of $1,000,000 and may purchase an additional one-third 
(1/3) of the royalty for an additional $1,000,000. 
 
The Company has the right to purchase the remaining 20% interest in the property at any time prior to the 
expiry of the three year period following the date of the exercise of the Option by issuing to the Optionor a 
further 200,000 common shares. 
 
In addition, the Optionor has staked additional mineral claims on behalf of the Company in an area that is 
contiguous to the optioned properties.  These additional claims are 100% owned by the Company.  The cost 
incurred to June 30, 2006 to stake these claims was $195,371 and was reimbursed in full to the Optionor by the 
Company.  The Company's interest in the KMD Project now totals approximately 151,000 acres. 
 
To maintain the above claims in good standing, the Company is required to spend a minimum of $4 per acre on 
assessment work during the first two years after staking and $2 per acre per year thereafter. 

4. EQUIPMENT 

 
  2006   2005  
  Accumulated Net Book  Accumulated Net Book 
 Cost Depreciation Value Cost Depreciation Value 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
       
Computer   -  -  -   1,498  225  1,273 
       

5. SHARE CAPITAL 

During August, 2004, the Company sold 1,678,333 seed shares at $0.15 per share pursuant to a private 
placement for total proceeds of $251,750. 

On January 7, 2005, the Company completed its Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) of 4,000,000 shares at $0.40 
per share. Pursuant to this financing, the Company paid an agent’s commission of 7.5% in cash totaling 
$120,000 and issued 200,000 common shares and 400,000 share purchase warrants.  Each warrant entitles the 
agent to acquire one common share of the Company at $0.40 per share until January 6, 2006.  These share 
purchase warrants expired unexercised.  In addition, the Company paid $105,457 of share issue costs to effect 
the IPO. 
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5. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 

On June 4, 2005, the Company completed a brokered private placement of 2,222,223 units at $0.45 per unit. 
Pursuant to this financing, the Company paid the broker a commission of 7.5% in cash totaling $75,000 and 
issued 222,222 share purchase warrants.  Each share purchase warrant entitles the broker to acquire one 
common share of the Company at $0.50 per share until June 15, 2007.  In addition, the Company paid $3,800 
of share issue costs to effect the brokered private placement.  Each unit of the brokered private placement is 
comprised of one common share and one-half a share purchase warrant.  Each whole warrant entitles the 
holder to acquire an additional common share of the Company until June 15, 2007 at a price of $0.50 per share.  
No warrants were exercised during the year. 

During the year ended June 30, 2005, 950,000 shares originally classified as escrow shares were repriced by 
regulatory authorities due to the fact that the holders were not principals of the Company.  As a result, the 
shares were reissued at $0.05 per share from $0.001 per share, for additional proceeds to the Company of 
$46,550. 

On September 27, 2005, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement of 622,466 units at $0.45 
per unit.  Each unit consisted of one flow-through common share and one-half a share purchase warrant to 
purchase a non-flow through common share until September 27, 2006 at $0.50 per share.  No warrants were 
exercised during the year.  Subsequent to June 30, 2006, these share purchase warrants expired unexercised.   

On January 24, 2006, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement of 5,482,667 units at $0.15 
per unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant.  2,116,667 of the units 
consisted of flow-through common shares and warrants to purchase non-flow through common shares.  Each 
whole warrant entitles the holder to acquire an additional common share of the Company at a price of $0.20 
per share until January 24, 2008.  No warrants were exercised during the year. 

On April 11, 2006, the Company changed its authorized capital to unlimited common shares without par value. 
 

During May and June 2006, the Company completed a brokered and non-brokered placement of 6,385,999 
units at $0.225 per unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant. 1,627,778 
of the units consisted of flow-through common shares and warrants to purchase non-flow through common 
shares.  Each whole warrant entitles the holder to acquire an additional common share of the Company at a 
price of $0.30 per share for a period of two years from closing.  A commission in the amount of $83,632 was 
paid for this placement.  No warrants were exercised during the year. 

a) Seed Shares 
The seed shares were subject to resale restrictions and could not be traded until they were released for 
trading over a twelve-month period following the closing of the initial public offering (January 7, 2005).  
20% of these shares were released on January 7, 2005 and 20% every three months thereafter.  As at June 
30, 2006, all seed shares were released.   

b) Escrow Shares 
The 10,000,000 escrow shares are governed by the provisions of the Canadian Securities Regulators 
National Policy 46-20, whereby the shares will be released pro-rata to the holders as follows: 

• 10% on the date the Company's shares were listed for trading (1,000,000 shares released in January, 
2005). 

• 15% every six months following the date that the Company's shares are listed for trading. 

As at June 30, 2006, there were 6,000,000 shares held in escrow. 
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5. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 

c) Stock Options 
 

The Company has established a stock option plan in accordance with the policies of the TSX Venture 
Exchange under which it is authorized to grant share purchase options up to 10% of its outstanding shares.  
The exercise price of options granted equals the market price of the Company’s stock on the date of the 
grant.  Unless otherwise stated, the options vest when granted.  The options are for a maximum term of five 
years.   
 
A summary of stock options activities during the year ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 is as follows: 
 
  2006   2005 
   Weighted   Weighted 
   Average   Average 
  Number of Exercise  Number of Exercise 
  Options Price  Options Price 
       
Outstanding at beginning 
of the year 

 
  

 
 1,700,000 

 
$0.40 

 
  

 
 - 

 
- 

Granted    1,480,000 $0.27    1,700,000 $0.40 
Expired/cancelled    (500,000) ($0.40)    - - 
Outstanding at end of the 
year 

 
  

 
 2,680,000 

 
$0.33 

 
  

 
 1,700,000 

 
$0.40 

       
Exercisable at end of year    2,155,000     1,700,000  
       

The Company has recorded $183,750 (2005: $611,000, 2004: $Nil) of compensation expense for 
stock-based compensation awarded to directors and consultants during the year-ended June 30, 2006. The 
weighted average fair value of the stock options granted during the periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, 
was $0.14 and $0.36 per option, respectively.  The Company used the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model 
to estimate the fair value of the options at each grant date using the following assumptions for the years 
ended June 30: 
 
 2006 2005 2004 
    
Dividend yield Nil Nil Nil 
Annualized volatility 81% 134% Nil 
Weighted average risk-free interest rate 2.86% 3.85% Nil 
Weighted average expected life 2.78 years 4.34 years Nil 
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5. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 

c) Stock Options (Continued) 

Outstanding stock options at June 30, 2006 are as follows: 

 
Number Outstanding Exercise Price Expiry Date 

   
  1,050,000 $0.40  January 7, 2010 
  150,000 $0.40  March 15, 2010 
  300,000 $0.40  September 19, 2010 
  480,000 $0.25  January 25, 2011 
  700,000 $0.225  June 14, 2007 
   
  2,680,000   
   

d) Warrants 
 

A summary of share warrant activities during the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 is as follows: 

 
  2006   2005  
  Weighted  Weighted 
  Average  Average 
 Number of Exercise Number of Exercise 
 Warrants Price Warrants Price 
     
Balance, beginning of year  1,733,334 $0.48  - - 
Issued  12,179,899 $0.26  1,733,334 $0.48 
Expired  (400,000) ($0.40)  - - 
     
Balance, end of year  13,513,233 $0.28  1,733,334 $0.48 
     

As at June 30, 2006, the following share purchase warrants were outstanding: 

 
Number Outstanding Exercise Price Expiry Date 

   
  1,333,334 $0.50  June15, 2007 
  311,233 $0.50  September 27, 2006 
  5,482,667 $0.20  January 24, 2008 
  5,585,999 $0.30  May 18, 2008 
  800,000 $0.30  June 8, 2008 
   
  13,513,233   
   

These warrants entitle the holders thereof the right to acquire one common share for each warrant held. 

On September 27, 2006, 311,233 share purchase warrants expired unexercised.   
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6. INCOME TAXES     
 
Basic combined statutory and provincial income tax rate  34.12% 35.62% 

 a) Tax provision 
 

 2006 2005 
 $ $ 
   
Loss before income taxes  (588,800)  (984,040) 
   
Income taxes at statutory rates  (200,899)  (350,515) 
Tax deductible share issue costs  (31,928)  (21,675) 
Non-deductible stock-based compensation  62,695  217,638 
Net changes in valuation allowance for future tax assets  (43,362)  90,943 
Other  5,606  609 
   
Total income taxes (recovery)  (121,164)  (63,000) 
   

b) Future tax balance 
 

 2006 2005 
 $ $ 
   
Future income tax assets relate to:   
 Mineral properties (net of future tax liabilities)  (181,100)  (63,000) 
 Non-capital loss carry forwards  323,200  165,600 
 Share issue costs  101,500  109,500 
   
  243,600  212,100 
   
Valuation allowance  (243,600)  (212,100) 
   
Net future income tax assets  -  - 
   

c) Tax loss carry forwards 

The Company has an available loss carry-forward of $947,363 and cumulative development and exploration 
expenses of $4,366,500 which may be carried forward to reduce taxable income in future years. The 
potential future income tax benefits are not reflected in these financial statements. The non-capital losses 
expire as follows: 

 
 Year $ 
 
 2014   16,821  
 2015   448,032 
 2016   482,510 
    947,363   
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7. COMMITMENTS 
 
a) On June 1, 2004, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with a geologist for a three-year term.  

The Company has agreed to pay the consultant $1,000 per day, with a minimum of one consulting day per 
month.  The Company has also agreed to issue to the consultant options to purchase 250,000 of the 
Company's common shares at $0.40 per share up to January 7, 2010. 

 
b) In July 2004, the Company entered into two year management agreements with certain of the Company's 

directors and officers for a total of $9,500 per month or $114,000 annually to June 30, 2006.  Subsequent to 
June 30, 2006, the Company renewed two of its management agreements for another two years for a total 
of $8,500 per month or $102,000 annually to June 30, 2008. 

 
c) In July, 2004, the Company entered into a two year premises lease at $1,500 per month or $18,000 annually 

to June 30, 2006.  Subsequent to June 30, 2006, the Company renewed its lease for another two years at 
$2,000 per month or $24,000 annually to June 30, 2008 effective August 1, 2006. 

8.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

During the year ended June 30, 2006, the Company incurred professional, management and consulting services 
rendered by certain directors and an officer in the amount of $96,500 (2005: $114,000, 2004: $Nil).  The 
Company also incurred $52,614 (2005: $33,632) in deferred mineral property expenditures to a company 
controlled by an officer and director of the Company. 

These transactions were entered into in the normal course of business and are measured at the exchange 
amount. 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2006, include $8,932 (2005: $4,328) owing to a company 
with a common director. 

During the year ended June 30, 2006, 2,050,000 units were issued to certain directors and officers of the 
Company and a company controlled by an officer of the Company for total proceeds of $423,000. 
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9. UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES       

These financial statements prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles 
("Canadian GAAP") conform to those generally accepted in the United States ("U.S. GAAP"), in all material 
respects, except as noted below: 

 
Reconciliation of losses reported to U.S. GAAP: 
 2006 2005 2004 
 $ $ $ 
    
Net loss as reported in accordance with Canadian GAAP  (467,636)  (921,040)  (18,301) 
Adjustments      
Advances for future exploration costs expensed  -  -  (297,500) 
Mineral exploration properties costs expensed  (1,560,920)  (2,572,727)  (268,173) 
    
Net loss under US GAAP  (2,028,556)  (3,493,767)  (583,974) 
    
Weighted average number of shares outstanding  26,783,813  18,539,297  965,518 
    
Basic and diluted net loss per share under US GAAP  (0.08)  (0.19)  (0.60) 
    

Advances for future exploration cost – Under Canadian GAAP, advances for futures exploration costs are 
capitalized.  Under US GAAP, advances related to exploration are expensed as incurred unless commercial 
feasibilities is established. 

Mineral exploration properties - acquisition and staking costs - Under Canadian GAAP, acquisition costs 
including staking costs are capitalized.  In accordance with EITF 04-2, under U.S. GAAP, acquisition costs 
only are considered tangible assets and are capitalized.   Effective July 1, 2004, the Company follows the 
guidance of EITF 04-2 prospectively. 

Mineral exploration properties - exploration expenditures - Under Canadian GAAP, exploration 
expenditures are capitalized.  Under U.S. GAAP, exploration expenditures are expensed as incurred unless 
commercial feasibility is established. 

Flow-through shares - Under U.S. GAAP, proceeds from the issuance of flow-through shares are allocated 
amongst the fair value of the stock issued and the price the investor pays.  The difference between the fair 
value and the price paid is recognized as a liability for accounting purposes.  The liability is relieved and the 
corresponding future tax liability is recorded when the Company renounces its exploration expenditures to the 
flow-through share investors. 

During the fiscal periods ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company issued flow-through shares.  As 
the fair value of the flow-through shares was the same as non-flow-through shares issued at the same time, no 
liability is recognized under U.S. GAAP. 

Under U.S. GAAP proceeds from the sale of flow-through shares would be classified as restricted cash until 
the expenditure actually occurs.  As at June 30, 2006, for U.S. GAAP purposes, cash of $324,193 (2005: $Nil, 
2004: $130,667) would have been restricted. 
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9. UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (Continued) 

Net loss per share and escrow shares - Under U.S. GAAP, performance-based escrow shares are considered 
to be contingently issuable until the performance criteria has been satisfied and are excluded from the 
computation of the weighted average of shares outstanding.  The Company's escrow shares are not 
performance-based and therefore no adjustments have been made to the calculation of the loss per share. 

Reconciliation of total assets, liabilities, and shareholder equity to U.S. GAAP:  
 
 2006 2005 2004 
 $ $ $ 
    
Total assets under Canadian GAAP  5,269,042  3,575,080  838,113 
Adjustments    
Expenses of advances for future exploration costs  -  -  (297,500) 
Expense of mineral exploration properties costs  (4,401,820)  (2,840,900)  (268,173) 
    
Total assets under US GAAP  867,222  734,180  272,440 
    
Total liabilities under Canadian GAAP  47,962  482,778  128,814 
Adjustments  -  -  - 
    
Total liabilities under US GAAP  47,962  482,778  128,814 
    
Total stockholders’ equity under Canadian GAAP  5,221,080  3,092,302  709,299 
Adjustments    
Expenses of advances for future exploration costs  -  -  (297,500) 
Expenses of mineral exploration properties costs  (4,401,820)  (2,840,900)  (268,173) 
    
Total equity under US GAAP  819,260  251,402  143,626 
    
Total liabilities and equity under US GAAP  867,222  734,180  272,440 
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9. UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (Continued) 

 Reconciliation of statements of cash flow to U.S. GAAP: 
 
 2006 2005 2004 
 $ $ $ 
    
Cash provided by (used in) operation under Canadian GAAP:    
    
Net loss as reported in accordance with Canadian GAAP  (467,636)  (921,040)  (18,301) 
Adjustments    
Advances for future exploration costs  -  -  (297,500) 
Expense of mineral exploration properties costs  (1,560,920)  (2,572,727)  (268,173) 
    
Net loss under US GAAP  (2,028,556)  (3,493,767)  (583,974) 
    
Add (deduct) items not involving cash:    
 Depreciation  -  225  - 
 Loss on disposal of equipment  313  -  - 
 Stock-based compensation  183,750  611,000  - 
 Future income tax benefit  (121,164)  (63,000)  - 
Changes in non-cash working capital balances  (54,312)  (44,659)  (16,299) 
    
Cash used in operations under US GAAP  (1,911,345)  (2,990,201)  (600,273) 
    
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities under Canadian GAAP:    
    
Prepaids  20,000  (20,000)  - 
Loans payable  -  (71,620)  71,620 
Shares issued  2,455,728  2,594,043  727,600 
    
Cash provided by financing activities under US GAAP  2,475,728  2,502,423  799,220 
    
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities under Canadian GAAP:    
    
Restricted cash  (324,193)  130,667  (130,667) 
Purchase of equipment  -  (1,498)  - 
Proceed on disposal of equipment  960  -  - 
Advances for future exploration costs  -  297,500  (297,500) 
Increase in mineral exploration properties  (2,015,276)  (2,357,870)  (227,467) 
Expense of mineral exploration properties costs  1,560,920  2,572,727  565,673 
    
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities under US GAAP  (777,589)  641,526  (89,961) 
    
Increase (decrease) in cash during the period  (213,206)  153,748  108,986 
    
Cash, beginning of the period  262,734  108,986  - 
    
Cash, end of the period  49,528  262,734  108,986 
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9. UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (Continued) 

Recent pronouncements: 

Management does not believe that any recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards that, if 
currently adopted, could have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. 
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ALTERATION EFFECTIVE DATE:

The alteration is to take effect at the time that this application is filed with the Registrar.

PRE-EXISTING COMPANY PROVISIONS

The company has resolved that the Pre-existing Company Provisions no longer apply to this company.

AUTHORIZED SHARE STRUCTURE

1. No Maximum common Shares Without Par Value

Without Special Rights or
Restrictions attached
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Cavey, George

Mailing Address:
SUITE 305 - 595 HOWE STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6C 2T5
CANADA

Delivery Address:
SUITE 305 - 595 HOWE STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6C 2T5
CANADA

Last Name, First Name, Middle Name:
CHAN, FOO

Mailing Address:
SUITE 305 - 595 HOWE STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6C 2T5
CANADA

Delivery Address:
SUITE 305 - 595 HOWE STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6C 2T5
CANADA

AUTHORIZED SHARE STRUCTURE

1. No Maximum common Shares Without Par Value

Without Special Rights or
Restrictions attached

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
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Exhibit 31.1  
 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14 
OR 15D-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT 

TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  
 
I, Timothy Crowhurst, certify that:  
 
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of Ripple Lake Diamonds Inc..;  
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material 

fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the 
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to 
the period covered by this report;  

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information 

included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, 
results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented 
in this report;  

 
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and 

maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange 
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:  

 
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure 

controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that 
material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly 
during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

 
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal 

control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles;  

 
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures 

and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this 
report based on such evaluation; and  

 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over 

financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual report 
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

 



5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent 
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the 
audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent functions):  

 
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of 

internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial 
information; and  

 
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other 

employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over 
financial reporting.  

 
Date: December 29th, 2006  

/s/ Timothy Crowhurst   
Timothy Crowhurst, 
Chief Executive Officer  

 



Exhibit 31.2 
 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14 
OR 15D-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT 

TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  
 
I, Ming Wong, certify that:  
 
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of Ripple Lake Diamonds Inc.;  
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material 

fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the 
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to 
the period covered by this report;  

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information 

included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, 
results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented 
in this report;  

 
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and 

maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange 
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:  

 
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure 

controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that 
material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly 
during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

 
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal 

control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles;  

 
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures 

and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this 
report based on such evaluation; and  

 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over 

financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual report 
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

 



5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent 
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the 
audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent functions):  

 
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of 

internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial 
information; and  

 
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other 

employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over 
financial reporting.  

 
Date: December 29th, 2006  

/s/ Ming Wong  
Ming Wong, 
Chief Financial Officer  

 
 



Exhibit 32.1  
 
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350  

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

 
In connection with the Annual Report of Ripple Lake Diamonds Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 
20-F for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Timothy Crowhurst, Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of 
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that:  
 
1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and  
 
2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the 

financial condition and results of operations of the Company.  
 
 
 By: /s/  Timothy Crowhurst  
  Timothy Crowhurst, 
  Chief Executive Officer 
 
December 29th, 2006 
 
 



Exhibit 32.2  
 
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350  

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

 
In connection with the Annual Report of Ripple Lake Diamonds Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 
20-F for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Ming Wong, Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that:  
 
1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and  
 
2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the 

financial condition and results of operations of the Company.  
 
 
 By: /s/  Ming Wong  
  Ming Wong, 
  Chief Financial Officer 
 
December 29th, 2006 
 




